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Late one Sunday afternoon in May I863, my uncle, Professor Lidenbrock, 

came home early. We lived in a house in the city of Hamburg. He was very 

excited. Martha, our cook, was worried. 'Why is Professor Lidenbrock 

here so early?' she cried. 'His dinner isn't ready yet.' 

وٕح ٔؼ١ش   .ٚوحْ ِرىٍج  1863َ جونً ػّٝ جلاْطحي ٌىٔرٍٚن جٌُّٕي ٠َٛ جقى ذؼى جٌظٍٙ فٝ شٍٙ ِح٠ٛ ع
ٌّح ٠ٛؾى جلاْطحي " لٍمس فظٍنص  وحٔص  ؽرحنطٕح ِحٌغح ٌىْٓؼ١ىج  ػّٝ  ٘حِرٍؼ ،وحْ فٝ ُِٕي فٝ ِى٠ٕس

 "ٌُ ٠ؿُٙ ذؼى جْ ػشحؤٖ " " ٕ٘ح فٝ ٚلص ِرىٍ ؾىج ؟

I told Martha not to worry and she went back to the kitchen. I started to go 

upstairs to my room, but Uncle Otto's voice stopped me.'Axel, come here!' he 

shouted.I entered his room. My uncle was sitting at his desk. He was looking 

at an old book.’ Look at this!' he exclaimed. 'What a fantastic book! It's 

more than six hundred years old. It's wonderful.' 

طحـ  . ٌىٓ طٛش ػّٝ جٚضٛ جٚلفٕٝ غٍفطٟ  ئٌٝذىأش جٌظؼٛو  .فؼحوش ٌٍّطرم  قِحٌغح ذألا ضمً أنرٍش
 ئٌٝجٔظٍ "  فمحيوطحخ لى٠ُ  ئٌٝضٗ ٚوحْ ػّٝ ؾحٌٓح ػٍٝ ِىطرٗ ٔحظٍج قؿٍونٍص .ضؼحي ٕ٘ح ٠ح جوًٓ"  لحتلا
 "ئٔٗ ٌجتغ  ِٓ ْطّحتس ْٕس أوػ٠ٍحٌٗ ِٓ وطحخ ٌجتغ ئْ ػٍّٖ " " ً٘ج

'What is this wonderful book called?' I asked. But my uncle did not hear me 

at first. He kept opening and shutting the book and talking about it to himself. 

I repeated my question.'This book is a translation of a famous Icelandic book. 

It was written by Snorri Sturlasson in the twelfth century. Ah, what's this?' 

A piece of parchment fell out of the book. There were strange letters 

written on it. My uncle picked it up and looked at it. He became even more 

excited.'Look! It's written in runes.' 
ػٕٗ  ٠ٚطكىظجٌرىج٠س ٚظً ٠فطف جٌىطحخ ٠ٚغٍمٗ  فٟ ٠ّٓؼٌٕٟىٓ ػّٝ ٌُ " ؟ ِحً٘ج جٌىطحخ جٌٍجتغ"  ْأٌطٗ

ً٘ج جٌىطحخ ضٍؾّس ٌىطحخ ج٠ٍٕٓىٜ وطد ذٛجْطس ٌْٕٜٛ ْطٌٛلاْْٛ  أْ" فٍو ْإجٌِٟغ ٔفٓٗ، فىٌٍش 
ٚوحْ ِىطٛخ ػ١ٍٙح قٍٚف غ٠ٍرس ْمطص ِٓ جٌىطحخ ٌل١س ؾٍى٠س " أٖٚ ِحً٘ج؟ .ػشٍ  جٌػحٟٔجٌمٍْ   فٟ

"  . ١ٔسِىطٛذس ذحٌٍٚ أٔٙح! جٔظٍ"  ٚلحي أوػٍفأطرف ِػحٌج  ئ١ٌٙحفحٌطمطٙح ػّٝ ٚٔظٍ 

'What are runes, Uncle?' I asked.'Runes are the letters of th old 

Icelandic alphabet, of course,'my uncle replied impatiently. 'I 

can read runes, but I can't understand this. What does it 

mean?' 

And he began to talk to himself again. I  was used to that because my uncle Otto was a 

little strange sometimes. He gave lectures at the University of Hamburg. He was a 

famous geologist: he knew more about the Earth than any other scientist. Other 
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geologists came from all over the world to learn from him. I  learned about geology from 

him. He was a very good teacher. When my parents died, I  came to live with him. I  

often helped him in his work. I  was proud to be the assistant of such a famous man. 

قٍٚف جلأذؿى٠س جلأ٠ٍٕٓى٠س  فٟذحٌطرغ  ٠سجٌٍْٚ 'فٍو ػّٝ ذىْٚ طرٍ 'ْأٌص ِح٘ٝ جٌٍُٚٔ ٠ح ػّٝ 
    'ِحيج ٠ؼٕٝ ً٘ج ؟ .جٔح جْطط١غ جْ جلٍأ جٌٍُٚٔ ٌٚىٕٝ لا أْطط١غ فُٙ ً٘ج  ' . 'جٌمى٠ّس

قى ِح فٝ ذؼغ  ئٌٝذىأ ػّٝ ٠طكىظ غح١ٔس ِغ ٔفٓٗ ٚجٔح وٕص ِؼطحوج ػٍٝ يٌه فؼّٝ وحْ غ٠ٍد   
ٚوحْ ؾ١ٌٛٛؾ١ح ِشٌٙٛج فىحْ ٠ؼٍف جٌىػ١ٍ ػٓ  ؼ٘حِرٌٛوحْ ػّٝ ٠ٍمٝ ِكحػٍجْ فٝ ؾحِؼس  .جلأق١حْ 

ِٕٗ ، ٚأٔح  جضؼٌٍّٟٛجٌؼحٌُ  أٔكحءؾ١ٌٛٛؾ١١ٓ آن٠ٍٓ ِٓ وً  ئ١ٌٗ ٠أضٟجلأٌع جوػٍ ِٓ جٌؼٍّحء ج٢ن٠ٍٓ ٚوحْ 
أض١ص لأػ١ش ِؼٗ ٚغحٌرح وٕص  ٚجٌىجٞػٕىِح ِحش  .جٌىػ١ٍ ػٓ جٌؿ١ٌٛٛؾ١ح ِٕٗ فٍمى وحْ ِىٌْح ؾ١ىج 

 ِٓحػىج ٌٍؾً ِشٌٙٛ ؾىج لإٟٔٔ، ٚوٕص فهٌٛج  ػٍّٗ  فٟ أْحػىٖ
He started to walk up and down the room with the parchment in his hand. 

He looked puzzled. When he was puzzled, he usually became angry. He was 

getting angry now. 

Martha opened the door of the study. 

'The soup is ready, Professor,' she said. 'OK!' shouted my uncle. 

Martha closed the door and ran back to the kitchen. 

I  followed her and sat down to dinner. Martha was a very 

good cook and I  was hungry. I  was just finishing my dinner when 

my uncle called my name again. I  got up from the table immediately and 

rushed back to his study. My uncle was sitting at his desk. He was staring at 

the parchment. 

 شٟء فٟجٌٝ قؿٍضٗ ٠ُٕٚي ٚفٝ ٠ىٖ جٌٍل١مس جٌؿٍى٠س ، ذح ػّٝ ِطك١ٍج ٚوحْ ػٕىِح ٠كطحٌ  وذىأ ٠ظغ
" جٌكٓحء ؾحُ٘ز ٠ح جْطحي " فطكص ِحٌغح ذحخ قؿٍز جٌّىطد ٚلحٌص    .ٚ٘ٛ غحػد ج٠ْ٢ظرف غحػرح 
جٌّطرم فطرؼطٙح ٚؾٍٓص ٌطٕحٚي جٌؼشحء ، وحٔص ِحٌغح ؽرحنس  ئٌِٝحٌغح ػحتىز  شفؿٍ" ِحشٝ" فظٍل ػّٝ 

غح١ٔس ، فٕٙؼص ِٓ ػٍٝ جٌّٕؼىز  ذأّْٝػّٝ  ٔحوجٟٔ ػشحتِٟحٍ٘ز ؾىج ، ٚق١ّٕح لٍذص ِٓ جلأطٙحء ِٓ 
 .ػٍٝ ِىطرٗ ٠كٍّك فٝ جٌٍل١مس جٌؿٍى٠س  ؾحٌٓحذٍٓػس ٚجٔطٍمص جٌٝ قؿٍز ِىطرس ٚوحْ ػّٝ 

'These are runes,' he said, 'but the letters are mixed up. That is why I  

cannot understand it. It is written in a secret code. And there is something 

else.''What?' I  asked.' The book and the parchment are not written in the 

same handwriting. The writing of the parchment is later than the writing of 

the book. Therefore I  think that this parchment was written by someone who 

owned the book.' 

My uncle continued to stare at the writing on the parchment. Then he used a 

magnifying glass to make the letters bigger. He looked at the 

parchment again. He pointed to a line of letters. 'Arne Saknussemm!' he 

exclaimed. 'Oh, that's an Icelandic name. Saknussemm was a famous 

Icelandic scientist of the sixteenth century. He made many great scientific 

discoveries. He must have owned this book!' 

 شٟءٌٙح ، ئٔٙح ِىطٛذس ذشفٍز ٠ٍْس ٠ٚٛؾى  فًّٟٖٙ٘ ٌُٚٔ ٌىٓ جٌكٍٚف ٍِهرطس ٚيٌه ْرد ػىَ "  لحي
جٌىطحخ ٚجٌٍل١مس ١ٌٓٛ ِىطٛذ١ٓ ذٕفّ جٌهؾ فحٌىطحذس ػٍٝ جٌٍل١مس جقىظ ِٓ " فمحي  "ِح٘ٛ"  ْأٌطٗ .أ٠ؼح 

ظً ػّٝ " . ًٌٌه جػطمى جْ ًٖ٘ جٌٍل١مس وطرص ذٛجْطس شهض وحْ ٠ّطٍه جٌىطحخ . جٌىطحذس ػٍٝ جٌىطحخ 
 جٌٍل١مس ئٌٝٔظٍ ػّٝ . ٠كٍّك فٝ جٌىطحذس جٌطٝ ػٍٝ جٌٍل١مس  غُ جْطهىَ ػىْس ِىرٍز ١ٌؿؼً جٌكٍٚف جورٍ 
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ٌٕىٜ فٓحو١ُْٕٛ يٌه جُْ ج٠ّ  آٖ " " أٌٔٝ ْحو١ُْٕٛ" ٍِز غح١ٔس ٚأشحٌ جٌٝ ْطٍ ِٓ جٌكٍٚف  ٚفحي 
جٌمٍْ جٌٓحوِ ػشٍ ٌٚٗ جوطشحفحش ػ١ٍّس وػ١ٍز ، ِٓ جٌّإوى أٔٗ وحْ ٠ّطٍه ً٘ج  فٟ وحْ ػحٌّح أ٠ٍٕٓىج 

 ."جٌىطحخ 
'But why should Arne Saknussemm want to hide what he had discovered?' I  

asked. 'Why should he keep it secret?' 

'I don't know,' my uncle replied, 'but I  am going to find out. I  will neither 

eat nor sleep until I  have discovered the secret.' 

My uncle guessed that the message was written in Latin and not Icelandic. 

Scientists of the sixteenth century always wrote about their discoveries in 

Latin. He tried reading the letters forwards, then backwards, but they still 

made no sense. 

He hit his desk with his fist. 'That's not it!' he cried. 'It doesn't make any 

sense!' And he ran out of the house and slammed the door behind him. 

Martha and I watched him go. 'He has gone without his dinner,' she said. 

'He will starve.' 

  ٌو ػّٝ." ٠كطفع ذٗ وٍٓ  أْ ٠ٕرغْٟحو١ُْٕٛ أْ ٠هفٝ ِح جوطشفٗ ، ٌّٚحيج  جٌٔٝ أٌجوٌّحيج  "  ْأٌطٗ
 ." يٌه  ، فأٔح ٌٓ آوً جٚ أٔحَ قطٝ جػٍف جٌٍٓ  ْأوطشفأٔح لا أػٍف ٌٚىٕٝ " 

جٌمٍْ جٌٓحوِ  فٟفحٌؼٍّحء  جلأ٠ٍٕٓى٠س١ٌٚٓص  زجٌلاض١ٕٟجٌٍْحٌس وطرص ذحٌٍغس  أْنّٓ ػّٝ              
ِٚٓ  ؟ قحٚي ػّٝ لٍجءز جٌكٍٚف ِٓ جلأِحَ.ػشٍ وحْ ٠ىطرْٛ وجتّح ػٓ جوطشحفحضُٙ ذحٌٍغس جٌلاض١ٕ١س 

، ئٔٙح لا ضؼطٝ   ١ٌّ وًٌه"   "ٚطٍل  نرؾ ػّٝ ِىطٍٗ ذٍجقس ٠ىٖ . جٌهٍف  ٌٚىٕح٘ح لا ضؼطٝ ٌٗ ِؼٕٝ 
شح٘ىش ػّٝ ٚوًٌه ِحٌغح ٚ٘ٛ  نحٌؾح ِٓ جٌُّٕي ٚ٘ٛ ٠ؿًخ جٌرحخ ٌٚجءٖ ذشىز فمحٌص ِحٌغح . " جٜ ِؼٕٝ

 " ْطّٛش ِٓ جٌؿٛع" 
 

 
Questions and answers 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 

1- Who was Lidenbrock ?                                             َ؟ ْ ٘ٛ ١ٌىْ ذٍٚن  
- He was a famous scientist and geologist. 

 ٘ٛ ػحٌُ ٚؾ١ٌٛٛؾٟ ِشٌٙٛ

2- Why did geologists from all over the world go to professor Lidenbrock ? 

جلأْطحي ٌىْ ذٍٚن؟ٌّحيج ي٘د جٌؿ١ٌٛٛؾ١١ٓ ِٓ وً أٔكحء جٌؼحٌُ ئٌٝ   

-To learn about the earth from him  

 ِٕٗ ػٓ جلاٌع ج١ٌطؼٍّٛ

3- Why  did Axel go to live with his uncle ?                ٌّحيج ي٘د جوًٓ ١ٌؼ١ش ِغ ػّٗ ؟ 

 - Because his parents died . ضٛج                                                            لأْ ٚجٌى٠ٗ ِح                           

4- Where did they live ?                                                                                 ْٛ؟ ج٠ٓ وحٔٛج ٠ؼ١ش  

- They lived in in the city of Hamburg in Germany . 

فٟ أٌّح١ٔح ٘حِرٌٛؼُِٕي فٟ ِى٠ٕس وحٔٛج ٠ؼ١شْٛ فٟ   
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5- Who was Axel ?                                                                                       أوًٓ ؟ ٛ٘ ِٓ  

- He was the professor’s nephew.                                                 ٛجلاْطحي٘ٛ جذٓ أن  

6- Who was Martha ?                                                                       ِحٌغح ؟ ٝ٘ ِٓ 

 - She was the professor’s cook                                             . ؽرحنس جلاْطحي ٟ٘   

7- Why was Martha worried that day ?                                        ٌّحيج وحٔص ِحٌغح لٍمس يٌه ج١ٌَٛ

 Because  the professor went home earlier than usual and his dinner wasn't ready yet . 

 . وٓ ػشحؤٖ ؾحُ٘ج ذؼى لأْ جلاْطحي ػحو ِرىٍج جوػٍ ِٓ جٌّؼطحو ٌُٚ ٞ

8-Why did the professor come home early?                  * ٌّحيج ػحو جٌرٍٚف١ٌٓٛ ٌٌُّٕٗ ِرىٍج  

Because he found a very interesting book.                                  لأٗ ٚؾى وطحخ ش١ك ؾىج  

9- What was professor Lidenbrock doing in his study ? ِٗحيج وحْ ٠فؼً جلاْطحي فٝ قؿٍز ِىطر 

- He was looking at a very old book . He kept opening and shutting it and talking 

about it with himself.                  ٗٓوحْ ٠ٕظٍ جٌٝ وطحخ لى٠ُ ٚظً ٠فطكٗ ٠ٚغٍمٗ ٠ٚطكىظ ػٕٗ ِغ ٔف

                                 .  

10- What was the old  book?                                                            ُِحيج وحْ جٌىطحخ جٌمى٠ 

It was a translation of a famous Icelandic book .                      ٌٛٙوحْ ضٍؾّس ٌىطحخ أ٠ٍٕٓىٜ ِش  

11- How old was the book ?                                                     وُ وحْ ػٍّ جٌىطحخ ؟  

It was 600 years old . .ػحِحً                                                         600وحْ    

12- Who wrote the old book ?When? ؟ِطٝ؟                               ِٓ وطد جٌىطحخ جٌمى٠ُ   

Snorri Sturlasson in the 12
th

   century.                  ْْٛفٟ جٌمٍْ جٌػحٟٔ ػشٍ.ٌْٕٜٛ ْطٌٛلا  

 

14- What fell out of  the book ?                                                  ِح جًٌٜ ٚلغ ِٓ جٌىطحخ ؟  

- A parchment                                                                                 . ِهطٛؽس   

13-How was the parchment written?                                            و١ف وطرص جٌّهطٛؽس؟  

-It was written in a secret code.                                                        ذشفٍز ٠ٍْس  
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15- Who wrote the parchment ?                                                        وطد جٌٍل١مس  ؟ ِٓ  

  - Arne Saknussemm . .                                                           أٌٔٝ ْحن ُْٔٛ   

16- Why  couldn’t the professor read the parchment ?  ٌّحيج ٌُ ٠ٓططغ جٌرٍٚف١ٌٓٛ أْ ٠مٍأ

؟ جٌّهطٛؽس  

-Because the letters were mixed up.                                                       لأْ جٌكٍٚف وحٔص ِطىجنٍس 

- It was written in a secret code . وحٔص ِىطٛذس ذشفٍز ٠ٍْس                                                            

               .  

17- Why did the professor guess that the parchment was written in Runes? 

 ٌّحيج نّٓ جٌرٍٚف١ٌٓٛ أْ جٌّهطٛؽس ِىطٛذس ذح١ٌٍٔٚس؟

 - Because he found it in an old Icelandic book. 

ٚوحٔص جٌكٍف ِهطٍطس.  لأٗ ٚؾى٘ح وجنً وطحخ أ٠ٍٕٓىٞ لى٠ُ  

18-What are runes ?                                                                   ِحجٌٍُٚٔ ؟  

-the letters of the old Icelandic alphabet.                قٍٚف جلاذؿى٠س جلا٠ٍٕٓى٠س جٌمى٠ّس.  

19- Why did the professor guess that the parchment was written in Latin? 

نّٓ جٌرٍٚف١ٌٓٛ أْ جٌّهطٛؽس ِىطٛذس ذحٌلاض١ٕ١س ؟ ٌّحيج  

-Because Arne Saknussemm lived in the 16th century and scientists of 

the 16th   century wrote about their discoveries in Latin 
.شحفحضُٙ ذحٌلاض١ٕ١س ػٍّحء جٌمٍْ جٌٓحوِ ػشٍ وطرٛج ػٓ جوصلاْ جٌٔٝ ْحوُْٕٛ وحْ ٠ؼ١ش فٝ جٌمٍْ جٌٓحوِ ػشٍ   

20 – Why did the professor guess that the parchment was written by someonw 

who owned the book? ٌّحيج نّٓ جلأْطحي أْ جٌٍل١مس وطرص ذٛجْطس جٌشهض جًٌٞ جِطٍه جٌىطحخ   

They weren’t written in the same hand writing . The writing of the parchment 

was later than the writing of the book. ِىطٛذ١ٓ ذٕفّ نؾ ج١ٌى وّح أْ جٌىطحذس ػٍٝ  جٌُ ٠ىٛٔٛ 

 جٌٍل١مس وحٔص جقىظ ِٓ جٌطٟ ػٍٝ جٌىطحخ

21- Why did the professor use a magnifying glass ? ٌّحيج جْطهىَ جٌرٍٚف١ٌٓٛ ػىْس ِىرٍز 

 - To make the letters bigger                                             . ٌىٝ ٠ؿؼً جٌكٍٚف أورٍ     
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22- Who was Snori Sturlasson?                                           مه سىىري ستىرلاسىن؟  

-a scientist in the 12th
 . The writer of the book  

 القرن الثاوي عشر وكاتب الرقيقةعالم في 

23- Who was Arne Saknussemm?                                                      مه اروً ساكىىسم ؟  

- a scientist in the 16th
 and the writer of the parchment . 

 عالم فً القرن السادس عشر وهى كاتب الرقيقة

24-Why was Axel proud of his uncle?                                        ٌّحيج وحْ جوًٓ فهٌٛج ذؼّٗ؟  

-Because he was a famous scientist and geologist.                           لأٗ وحْ ػحٌّح ٚؾ١ٌٛٛؾ١ح ِشٌٙٛج  

25- Runes were ……………. ................ج١ٌٍٔٚس وحٔص    
 - the letters of the old Icelandic alphabet. ٘ٝ جٌكٍٚف جلأذؿى٠س جلأ٠ٍٕٓى٠س جٌمى٠ّس   

26- Although the professor knew Latin and Runes, ……….. 
................ . ذحٌٍغُ أْ جٌرٍٚف١ٌٓٛ وحْ ٠ؼٍف جٌلاض١ٕ١س ٚ  ج١ٌٍٔٚس  

 

 - He couldn’t understand the parchment . 

 ٌُ ٠ٓططغ أْ ٠فُٙ جٌّهطٛؽس

27- The book and the parchment were not written …………. 
....... جٌىطحخ ٚجٌّهطٛؽس ٌُ ٠ىٛٔح ِىطٛذ١ٓ  

 - in the same handwriting . 

.ذٕفّ جٌهؾ   
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When Martha had gone, I picked up the parchment and   studied it. I tried to 

arrange the letters so that they formed Latin words. But it was impossible. I 

tried every combination of letters I could think of, but I still couldn't make 

any sense of it. I became hot. I felt I couldn't breathe, so I picked up the 

parchment and started to fan myself with it. 

While I was sitting in front of the window I saw the back of the parchment 

and then the front. Suddenly I saw some Latin words which I knew: creterem, 

a crater, terrestre, of the Earth. You can imagine how excited I was. I had 

broken the secret code! 

ضىْٛ وٍّحش لاض١ٕ١س ٌىٕٙح وحٔص  ٌىٟػٕىِح ي٘رص ِحٌغح جٌطمطص جٌٍل١مس ٚوٌْطٙح ، قحٌٚص ضٍض١د جٌكٍٚف 
شؼٍش ذحٌكٍجٌز ٌُٚ . قحٌٚص ضؿ١ّغ جٌكٍٚف ذىً ؽ٠ٍمس فىٍش ف١ٙح ٌىٕٙح ٌُ ضؼطٝ جٜ ِؼٕٝ .ِٓطك١ٍس 

 .ٔفٟٓذٙح ػٍٝ  أٌٚـ ٚذىأشجْططغ جٌطٕفّ ًٌٌه جٌطمطص جٌٍل١مس 
 جٌطٟوٍّحش جٌلاض١ٕ١س ذ١ّٕح وٕص ؾحٌٓح أِحَ جٌشرحن ٌأ٠ص نٍف١س جٌٍل١مس غُ جٌٛجؾٙس ، ٚفؿأز ٌأ٠ص ذؼغ جي

وُ وٕص ِػحٌج فٙح أٔح وٍٓش جٌشفٍز ج٠ٌٍٓس  جضطه١ٍٛ أ٠ّْٚىٕىُ ( جلأٌع ( ) فطكس جٚ فٛ٘س )وٕص أػٍفٙح 
.  

At last I calmed down. 'Now let's see what it says,' I said to myself. I spread 

the parchment out in front of the window and started to read it. I managed to 

understand all of it. 

For some moments I sat there without moving. I was frightened by what I 

had read. 

Was it possible? Had this really happened? Had some man really been brave 

enough to do this? And then I jumped up out of my seat. 

'Oh no,' I cried. 'My uncle must not find out about this. When he reads this, he 

will want to do it himself. He will want to take me with him. We will never 

return to Hamburg. I must stop him from reading it!' 

I took the parchment over to the fire. I was just going to burn it when the 

door opened and my uncle appeared. 

فٍوش جٌٍل١مس أِحَ جٌشرحن ٚذىأش ألٍأ٘ح ، ٚأٌوش   " ١٘ح ٍٜٔ ِحيج ضمٛي "  ٌٕفٟٓ٘ىأش ٚلٍص  ٠س جٌٕٙح فٟ
ً٘ ً٘ج ِّىٓ ؟ ً٘ قىظ . وٕص نحتفح ِّح لٍأش . ؾٍٓص ٌرؼغ جٌٍكظحش ذىْٚ قٍجن . أْ جفُٙ وً ِح ذٙح 

٠ح " غُ ٔٙؼص ٚجلفح ِٓ ػٍٝ جٌىٍْٟ ٚطٍنص  –ً٘ج فؼلا ؟ ً٘ جِطٍه شهض ِح جٌشؿحػس جٌىحف١س ًٌٙج 
ِؼٗ  ٠أن٠ٍ١ًْٟٚٔى أْ  ٜ ً٘ج فؼٕىِح ٠مٍأ ً٘ج ٠ٍ١ْى أْ ٠مَٛ ذٗ ذٕفٓٗ ،٠ىطشف ػُ ألا٠ؿد ! " "  جٌٟٙ

ٌفؼص جٌٍل١مس ػٍٝ جٌٕحٌ ٚوٕص ْأقٍلٙح  . " إِٔؼٗ ِٓ لٍجءضٙح  أ٠ْؿد .  ؼ٘حِرٌٛ ئٌٝ، ٌٚٓ ٔؼٛو غح١ٔس 
 ػٕىِح جٔفطف جٌرحخ ٚظٍٙ ػّٝ

I just had time to put the parchment back on the table. My uncle did not see 

me. He was still thinking about the secret message. He studied the parchment 

all night. I fell asleep on the couch. When I woke up, it was morning. My uncle 

Chapter two 
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was still staring at the parchment. His face was white and his eyes were red. I 

felt sorry for him. I knew the secret of the parchment, but I could not tell my 

uncle. I knew he would want to follow in the footsteps of the old Icelandic 

scientist. That would be very dangerous. 

٠ُجي ٠فىٍ فٝ جٌٍْحٌس  ػّٝ فىحْ لا ٠ٍجٟٔ وٕص جٍِه ٚلطح ذ١ٓطح لأٌِٝ جٌٍل١مس ػٍٝ جٌّٕؼىز  ، ٌُٚ
 ػٕىِح جْط١مظص وٕح فٝ جٌظرحـ ، ٚوحْ لا.  جلأ٠ٌىسظً ٠طفكض جٌٍْحٌس ؽٛي ج١ًٌٍ فّٕص ػٍٝ . ج٠ٌٍٓس 

ػ١ٍٗ فأٔح ػٍفص ٍْ جٌٍل١مس  ذحلأْفجذ١غ ٚؾٙٗ ٚجقٍّش ػ١ٕح فشؼٍش . جٌٍل١مس  ف٠ُٟجي ػّٝ ٠كٍّك 
ف أٔٗ ٠ٍ١ْى أْ ٠هطٛ ٔفّ نطٛجش جٌؼحٌُ جلا٠ٍٕٓىٜ ٚيٌه ١ْىْٛ ػّٝ ، فأٔح أػٍ ئنرحٌٌىٕٝ ٌُ جْططغ 

 نط١ٍج ؾىج 
The morning passed. There was no breakfast and no lunch. I 

was very hungry .I started to change my mind about telling him of my 

discovery. Surely I could stop him from making such a dangerous journey. 

About two o'clock my uncle put on his hat to go out. I decided to tell him. 

'Uncle Lidenbrock,' I said. 'Have you found the secret of the code?' 

He said nothing, but he shook his head and stared at me. 'I think I have found 

the answer,' I said. I showed him the words I had written down: 

Go down into the crater of Sneffels which the shadow of Scartaris touches 

before July. Then you will reach the centre of the Earth, I have done this. Arne 

Saknussemm. 

ذىأش أغ١ٍ ٌأ١٠ٝ ٔحق١س ئنرحٌ ػّٝ . وٕص ؾٛػحْ ؾىج . ٍِ جٌظرحـ ٌُٚ ٠ىٓ ٕ٘حن ئفطحٌ أٚ غًجء 
فٝ قٛجٌٝ جٌٓحػس جٌػح١ٔس . ِٓ جٌم١حَ  ذطٍه جٌٍقٍس جٌهط١ٍز  ئ٠محفٗ ْأْطط١غوٕص  ، فرحٌطأو١ى  ذحوطشحفٟ

ً٘ ٚطٍص جٌٝ ٍْ جٌشفٍز " " ػّٝ ٌىْ ذٍٚن " ٠هٍؼ فمٌٍش أْ أنرٍٖ ٚلٍصٞ جٌضىٜ ػّٝ لرؼطٗ ٌه
 جٌطٟ، ٚذ١ٕص ٌٗ جٌىٍّحش " ٚؾىش جٌكً  إٟٔٔأػطمى " ذشىز فمٍص  ٌٌُٟ ٠مً ش١ثح ٌىٕٗ ُ٘ ٌأْٗ ٚٔظٍ " ؟

ٍِوُ  ئٌٝلرً ١ٌٛ٠ٗ فّٕٙح ْطظً  ْىحٌضح٠ٌِّطى ػ١ٍٙح ظً  جٌطٟ ْٕفٍُِٓ فٛ٘س  جُٔي: ) وٕص لى وٚٔطٙح 
 ( ْحو١ُْٕٛ جٌٔٝ. فؼٍص ً٘ج  ججلأٌع فأْ

When my uncle read this, he gave a great cry and jumped to 

his feet. Books flew everywhere. 

He walked up and down for a few moments. Then he turned to me. He asked 

me the time. I told him it was three o'clock. My uncle was surprised.  

'Is that the time?' he asked. 'We must have some lunch. And then pack my 

box.' 

'What?' I asked. 

'After that, pack your own box,' he said. I tried to tell my uncle of the danger 

of the journey, but he would not listen and he walked out of the room. 

We ate lunch together, and then he called me into his study. 

'Axel,' he said kindly, 'you are a very clever young man and you have helped 

me greatly. I will not forget this. Now bring me that atlas from the bookshelf.' 

I did as my uncle asked. He showed me the places Arne had written about on 

the map of Iceland. I saw that Sneffels was a huge mountain, nearly two 

thousand metres high. 

ظً . طٍل طٍنس ػظ١ّس ٚلفُ ذمى١ِٗ فٝ جٌٙٛجء ، ٚضطح٠ٍش جٌىطد فٝ وً ِىحْ  ،ً٘جٜ لٍأ ػُػٕىِح 
ػٓ جٌٛلص  فأنرٍضٗ أٔٙح وحٔص  ْٚإٌٟٔػّٝ ١ٓ٠ٍ جٌٝ جلاػٍٝ ٚجٌٝ جلاْفً ٌّىز نّّ ولحتك غُ جٌطفص ٌٝ 
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ٜ ٠ؿد أْ ٔطٕحٚي ذؼغ جٌغًجء غُ ؾُٙ جِطؼص" " ً٘ ً٘ج ٘ٛ جٌٛلص ؟" وحْ ػّٝ ِٕى٘شح ْٚإٌٔٝ . جٌػحٌػس 
قحٌٚص جْ ج٘رٍ ػّٝ ػٓ نطٍ جٌٍقٍس  ٌىٕٗ ٌُ ٠ٓطّغ .  أِطؼطهٚذؼى يٌه ؾُٙ " فمحي "ِحيج ؟" فٓأٌطٗ . 

جٔص ٠ح جوًٓ شحخ " جٌٝ قؿٍز ِىطرس ٚلحي ذؼطف  ٔحوجٟٔضٕحٌٕٚح جٌغًجء ِؼح غُ . جٌٝ ٚنٍؼ ِٓ قؿٍضٗ 
ؽ ِٓ ػٍٝ جٌٍف ، ففؼٍص وّح أِح ج٢ْ فأقؼٍ ؽطحخ جٌهٍجب. ٠ٍج ٚأٔح ٌٓ أٔٓٝ ً٘ج ٌه يوٝ ، ْحػىضٕٝ وع

ٌأ٠ص ْٕفٍُ .  ْحو١ُْٕٛجٌطٝ وطد ػٕٙح أٌٔٝ  جلأِحوٓ أ٠ٍٕٓىجذ١ٓ ػّٝ ٌٝ ػٍٝ  ن٠ٍطس . ؽٍد ِٕٝ ػّٝ 
 .  ِطٍ  أٌفٝجًٌٜ وحْ ؾرلا ػهّح ٠مٍخ جٌضفحػٗ ِٓ 

'But this mountain is a volcano. You can't go down into the centre of a volcano. You 

would die of the heat,' I said.My uncle smiled. 'But Sneffels is an extinct volcano. It has 

not erupted since the year 1229. Now it is quite cold. Sneffels has several craters. Only 

one leads to the centre of the Earth. Arne tells us that the mountain Scartaris casts its 

shadow over this crater at the end of June.''But everyone knows that the centre of the 

Earth is very hotIt is impossible to go there and come back alive.'My uncle smiled. 

'Impossible, is it? Well, we are scientists and we should go there and see for ourselves. 

We leave for Iceland the day after tomorrow! ' 

 أذطُٓ. ِٕطظف ذٍوحْ فٓطّٛش ِٓ جٌكٍجٌز    ئٌٌٝىٓ ً٘ج جٌؿرً ذٍوحْ ٚأٔص لاضٓط١غ جٌُٕٚي " لٍص 
فٙٛ ج٢ْ ذحٌو وّح أْ ْٕفٍُ ذٗ  1229ٌىٓ ْٕفٍُ ذٍوحْ نحِى ، ئٔٗ ٌُ ٠ٕفؿٍ ًِٕ ػحَ " ػّٝ ٚلحي 

٠رٓؾ ػ١ٍٙح  جٌط٠ٟهرٍٔح  أٔٙح جٌفطكس  فأٌٍِٟٔوُ جلأٌع ،  ئٌٝضمٛو  جٌطٟ ٟ٘وػ١ٍز ٚٚجقىز فمؾ  فطكحش
جلأٌع قحٌ ؾىج  ٍِوٌُىٓ وً جٌٕحِ ٠ؼٍفْٛ جْ " لٍص . " ١ٔٛ٠ٗظٍس فٝ ٔٙح٠س شٍٙ   ْىحٌضحٌِؾرً  

: قٕٓح " ٌه ؟وً أ١ٌّ: ِٓطك١ً " ػّٝ ٚلحي  أذطُٓ"  أق١حءفّٓ جٌّٓطك١ً أْ ًٔ٘د جٌٝ ٕ٘حن ٚٔؼٛو 
 . "ٕ٘حن ٍٜٚٔ ذأٔفٕٓح ْٕٚغحوٌ جٌٝ أ٠ٍٕٓىج ذؼى جٌغى  ئٌٝئٕٔح ػٍّحء ٠ٚؿد أْ ًٔ٘د 

  
 

 
Questions and answers 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

1. How did Axel break the secret code?                  و١ف جْططحع أوًٓ أْ ٠كً جٌشفٍز ج٠ٌٍٓس؟  

-By chance when he saw some Latin words which he knew . 

.جٌظىفس ػٕىِح ٌأٜ ذؼغ جٌىٍّحش جٌلاض١ٕ١س جٌطٟ وحْ ٠ؼٍفٙح خ  

2. Why didn’t Axel want to tell his uncle that he knew the secret message? 

ِحيج ٌُ ٠ٍو أوًٓ أْ ٠هرٍ ػّٗ ذأٔٗ ػٍف جٌشفٍز ج٠ٌٍٓس؟ي  

-To prevent him from making the journey .                                    . ١ٌّٕؼٗ ِٓ ػًّ جٌٍقٍس    

3.Why was Axel going to burn the parchment?            ؟ِحيج وحْ ١ْكٍق جوًٓ جٌّهطٛؽسي  

 - To stop his uncle from making the journey .ي جٌٍقٍس                     ٌىٝ ٠ّٕغ ػّٗ ِٓ ػُ   

4. Did Axel burn the parchment? Why?                                ٖي قٍق أوًٓ جٌّهطٛؽس؟ ٌّحيج ؟  

No, he didn’t. because his uncle appeared suddenly. 

لأْ ػّٗ ظٍٙ فؿأز. لا ٌُ ٠كٍلٙح   
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5. Why did Axel decide to tell his uncle about the secret message? 

ِحيج لٌٍ أوًٓ ئنرحٌ  ػّٗ ػٓ جٌٍْحٌس ج٠ٌٍٓس؟ي  

 - Because he felt sorry for his uncle who hasn’t eaten or slept for two days. 

 لأْ شؼٍ ذحٌكُْ ػٍٝ ػّٗ جًٌٜ ٌُ ٠أوً ٌُٚ ٠ُٕ ٌّىز ١ِٛ٠ٓ

6. What was the secret message on the parchment?  

ج ٘ٝ جٌٍْحٌس ج٠ٌٍٓس جٌطٟ جقطٛش ػ١ٍٙح جٌٍل١مس؟َ  

-It was that Arne Saknussemm had been to the center of the earth through the crater 

of Snefflels . 

.أْ جٌٔٝ ْحوُْٕٛ ُٔي ئٌٝ ٍِوُ جلأٌع ِٓ نلاي فٛ٘س ؾرً ْٕفٍُ   

7. How did Axel and the professor feel about making the journey ?  

 و١ف شؼٍ جوًٓ  ٚجلأْطحي ٔحق١س جٌم١حَ ذحٌٍقٍس

 - The professor was very excited, but Axel was very worried . 

 ً .جلاْطحي وحْ ْؼ١ىجً ٌٚىٓ أوًٓ وحْ لٍمح  

8- Axel believed that the journey to the center of the earth would be impossible and 

dangerous Why ? ٌّحيج ؟                    . جػطمى جوًٓ أْ جٌٍقٍس ئٌٝ ٍِوُ جلأٌع ِٓطك١ٍس أٚ نط١ٍز   

Because he thought the center of the earth  was very hot . 

جؽٓ جلأٌع قحٌ ؾىج                                                                                       لأٔٗ جػطمى أْ خ  

9. What did the professor do when he knew the secret message? 

جيج فؼً جٌرٍٚف١ٌٓٛ ػٕىِح ػٍف جٌٍْحٌس ج٠ٌٍٓس؟َ  

- He jumped to his feet and gave a cry of joy. 

,لفُ ػٍٝ لى١ِٗ  .ٚأؽٍك ط١كس فٍـ  

10. What is Sneffels ?                                                                                              ٍُِح ٘ٛ ْٕف 

- an extinct volcano in Iceland that hasn’t erupted since 1229. 

.1229نحِى فٝ أ٠ٍٕٓىج ٌُ ٠ػٌٛ ًِٕ  ذٍوحْ  

15. What is Scartaris ?                                                       ٌِِح٘ٛ ْىحٌضح                                 

- a huge mountain in Iceland that casts its shadow over the crater of Sneffels before 

July. 

.ؾرً ػحٌٝ فٝ أ٠ٍٕٓىج ٠ّى ظلاٌٗ ػٍٝ فٛ٘س ْٕفٍُ لرً ١ٌٛ٠ٛ   

12. What is Scartaris ?                                                       ٌِِح٘ٛ ْىحٌضح                                 

- a huge mountain in Iceland that casts its shadow over the crater of Sneffels before 

July. 

.ؾرً ػحٌٝ فٝ أ٠ٍٕٓىج ٠ّى ظلاٌٗ ػٍٝ فٛ٘س ْٕفٍُ لرً ١ٌٛ٠ٛ   
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13-Axel thought that the centre of the earth ………                         جػطمى جوًٓ جْ ٍِوُ جلأٌع 

 

…………. was very hot and they would die of heat 

 قحٌ وىج ٚأُٔٙ ١ّْٛضْٛ ِٓ جٌكٍجٌز 

14.Although Sneffels had several craters,………………….. 

...........جٌٍغُ أْ ْٕفٍُ ذٗ فٛ٘حش ػى٠ىز ئلا أْ خ  

 – only one led to the center of the earth. ٚجقىز فمؾ ضإوٜ ئٌٝ ٍِوُ جلأٌع                       

 15. After finding out the secret message of the parchment, professor Lidenbrock 

decided ………… ...........ػى جوطشحف جٌٍْحٌس ج٠ٌٍٓس ، لٌٍ جٌرٍٚف١ٌٓٛ ١ٌىْ ذٍٚن خ   

- to make the journey to the center of the earth .أْ ٠مَٛ ذحٌٍقٍس ئٌٝ ٍِوُ جلأٌع    

16- Scartaries casts its shadow over ………………… ٠ّى ْىحٌضحٌِ ظٍٗ ػٍٝ                           

……………. A crater in sneffels that leads to the center of the earth at the end of June 

 فطكس ضمٛو جٌٝ ٍِوُ جلاٌع ٚيٌه فٝ ٔٙح٠س شٍٙ ١ٔٛ٠ٗ
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The next day we prepared for our journey. Guns, tools, and scientific 

instruments arrived all day and were packed into boxesPoor Martha watched 

this activity. 'Professor Lidenbrock is taking youaway,' she said. 'Is he mad?' I 

nodded.' Where are you going?'I pointed down towards the centre of the 

Earth.' To the cellar?' Martha asked.' No, Martha,' I replied. 'Farther down 

than that.' 

.فٟ ج١ٌَٛ جٌطحٌٟ ؾُٙٔح ٌٍقٍطٕح ذٕحوق ٚأوٚجش ِٚؼىجش ػ١ٍّس ٚطٍص ؽ١ٍس ج١ٌَٛ ٚػرأش فٟ طٕحو٠ك   
؟ فأِٚأش ذٍأْٟ " ً٘ ٘ٛ ِؿْٕٛ " . " جلأْطحي ١ْأنًن ذؼ١ىج " شح٘ىش ِحٌغح جٌط١رس ً٘ج جٌٕشحؽ فمحٌص 

" ئٌٝ جٌّهُْ " ؟ أشٍش ئٌٝ جلأْفً ذحضؿحٖ ٍِوُ جلأٌع فٓأٌص ِحٌغح " ئٌٝ أ٠ٓ أٔطُ يج٘رْٛ " فٓأٌطٕٟ 
"لا ٠ح ِحٌغح أذؼى ِٓ يٌه " ؟ فٍووش ػ١ٍٙح   

At last everything was packed up and we set off on our journey. We travelled 

by steamer to Copenhagen. There we met a Danish scientist who gave us 

letters of introduction to the most important men in Iceland. From 

Copenhagen we sailed north to Iceland. The sea was very rough and my uncle 

was seasick for most of the voyage. But when we arrived in Reykjavik, the 

capital of Iceland, he was happy and excited. He did not want to explore 

Reykjavik. 

.ٚفٟ جٌٕٙح٠س وحْ وً ش١ة ِؼرأ ٚجٔطٍمٕح فٟ ٌقٍطٕح   

نطحذحش ضٛط١س لأُ٘ جٌٍؾحي ٌمى ْحفٍٔح ذحٌرحنٍز ئٌٝ وٛذٕٙحؾٓ ٕٚ٘حن لحذٍٕح ػحٌّح و٠ّٕحٌو١ح جًٌٞ أػطحٔح 

ِٚٓ وٛذٕٙحؾٓ أذكٍٔح شّحلا ئٌٝ أ٠ٍٕٓىج ٚوحْ جٌركٍ ٘حتؿح فأط١د ػّٟ ذىٚجٌ ٌّؼظُ جٌٍقٍس . فٟ أ٠ٍٕٓىج 

٠ٌه " وحْ ْؼ١ىج ِٚػحٌج ٌُٚ ٠ٍ٠ى أْ ٠ٓطىشف " ػحطّس أ٠ٍٕٓىج " ٌىٓ ػٕىِح ٚطٍٕح ئٌٝ ٠ٌه ؾحف١ه 

" .ؾحف١ه   

'The most interesting part of Iceland is under the ground,' he said. 

We immediately set off for the home of Dr Fridrikson. My uncle had a letter of 

introduction to him. He told Dr Fridrikson that he was interested in exploring 

Iceland's geology. .'That is a very interesting  subject,' said Dr Fridrikson. 

'Iceland has many volcanoes which have not been explored. For example, look 

at the mountain behind us. It is called Sneffels. It has a very interesting 

crater, but no one ever visits it.' 

" ف٠ٍى٠ٌه ْْٛ " لٕح ذٍٓػس ئٌٝ ُِٕي جٌىوطٌٛ جٔطً" ئْ أُ٘ ؾُء فٟ أ٠ٍٕٓىج ضكص جلأٌع " ٚلحي 

ٚوحْ ِغ ػّٟ نطحخ ضٛط١س ٌٗ ٚأنرٍ جٌىوطٌٛ ف٠ٍى٠ٌه ْْٛ أٔٗ وحْ ِٙطّح ذحْطىشحف ؽرمحش جلأٌع 

.فٟ أ٠ٍٕٓىج   
ئْ يٌه ِٛػٛع ش١ك ئْ أ٠ٍٕٓىج ضكٛٞ جٌىػ١ٍ ِٓ جٌرٍجو١ٓ جٌطٟ ٌُ ضٓطىشف " لحي جٌىوطٌٛ ف٠ٍى٠ٌه ْْٛ 

..ِػ١ٍز ٌىٓ ٌُ ٠ٌُٚ٘ح أقى  ئْ ذٗ فٛ٘س . ٌٚج ئٌٝ جٌؿرً نٍفٕح ئٔٗ ٠ّٓٝ ْٕف١ٍُ فؼٍٝ ْر١ً جٌّػحي أٔع  

Chapter three 



 

 

13 

 
'Really?' said my uncle. He appeared to be calm, but I knewthat he was very 

excited. 'Is this volcano extinct?''Oh yes,' said Dr Fridrikson. 'It has not 

erupted for the last sixhundred years.''Well,' said my uncle, 'I think perhaps 

we shall explore this Seffel ... Fessels ... what do you call it?''Sneffels,' said Dr 

Fridrikson.Dr Fridrikson was very helpful. He arranged for a guide called Hans 

to take us to Sneffels. I liked Hans immediately. He was a big man who moved 

slowly and did not say very much. My uncle liked him, too.'Hans is a good 

man,' he said, 'but he does not yet know what we are going to do.''So he's 

coming with us to...?''Yes, Axel. Hans is coming with us to the centre of the 

Earth.'  

 
ج قـ "فمحي ػّٟ  " . ؟ " ً٘ ً٘ج ذٍوحْ نحِى  "ٚذىج ٘حوتح ٌىٕٟ وٕص أػٍف أٔٗ ِػحٌ ؾىج ْٚأي  "؟ !

قٕٓح "لحي ػّٟ " . أٖٚ ٔؼُ ئٔٗ ٌُ ٠ٕفؿٍ ؽٛجي جٌٓطّحتس ْٕس جٌّحػ١س " فمحي جٌىوطٌٛ ف٠ٍى٠ٌه ْْٛ 
١ْٕفٍُ " لحي جٌىوطٌٛ ف٠ٍى٠ٌه ْْٛ " ِحيج ١ّْطٗ ؟ ... ف١ٍُٓ ...... أػطمى أٔٗ  ٌذّح ٔٓطىشف ً٘ج جٌٓفً 

وحْ جٌىوطٌٛ ف٠ٍى٠ٌه ْْٛ  ِٓحػىج ٚؾُٙ ٌٕح ٍِشى ٠ّٓٝ ٘حُٔ ١ٌأنًٔح ئٌٝ ١ْٕفٍُ أٔح أقررص ٘حُٔ " 
لحي ػّٟ ئْ ٘حُٔ . وحْ ٘حُٔ ور١ٍج فٟ جٌكؿُ ٠ٚطكٍن ذرؾء ٚلا ٠طىٍُ وػ١ٍج ، ٚأقرٗ ػّٟ أ٠ؼح . ذٍٓػس 

ٔؼُ ٠ح أوًٓ " فمحي ػّٟ " ؟ .......... ً٘ ١ْأضٟ ِؼٕح ئٌٝ " ِح ْٕفؼٍٗ فمٍص  ٌؾً ؽ١د ٌٚىٕٗ لا ٠ؼٍف
."ئْ ٘حُٔ ١ْأضٟ ِؼٕح ئٌٝ ٍِوُ جلأٌع   

Hans helped us to pack the guns, tools, and scientific instruments we had 

brought with us from Hamburg. Dr Fridrikson came to see us off and I 

wish us good luck.Hans led us out of Reykjavik. Soon we were in the 

countryside. We followed a path along the coast. The countryside was bleak. 

There were no crops and hardly any animals. The grass was yellow and there 

were large rocks everywhere. Here and there we saw a lonely farmhouse. 

Sometimes we had to cross inlets and sometimes we had to wait until the tide 

was out before we could cross. This made my uncle very angry, because he 

did not want to waste any time on his journey. 

 
جٌرٕحوق ٚجلأوٚجش ٚجٌّؼىجش جٌؼ١ٍّس جٌطٟ أقؼٍٔح٘ح ِؼٕح ِٓ ٘حِرٌٛؼ ٚأضٝ  ْحػىٔح ٘حُٔ فٟ ضؼرثس 
لحؤح ٘حُٔ نحٌؼ ٠ٌه ؾحف١ه ٚذٍٓػس وٕح فٟ . ١ٌٛوػٕح ٠ٚطّٕٝ ٌٕح قظح ْؼ١ىج " جٌىوطٌٛ ف٠ٍى٠ٌه ْْٛ 

ش ٌُ ٠ىٓ ٕ٘حن ِكحط١ً ٚذحٌىحو ذؼغ جٌك١ٛجٔح. ج٠ٌٍف ، ضرؼٕح ؽ٠ٍمح ػٍٝ ؽٛي جٌٓحقً ٚوحْ ج٠ٌٍف لحقلا 
ٚوحٔص جٌكشحتش طفٍجء ٚفٟ وً ِىحْ جٔطشٍش جٌظهٌٛ جٌىر١ٍز ِٚٓ ٕ٘ح ئٌٝ ٕ٘حن ٌأ٠ٕح ُِٕلا ٠ٌف١ح 

جػطٌٍٔح أق١حٔح ئٌٝ ػرٌٛ ِؿحٌٞ ج١ٌّحٖ ٚجػطٌٍٔح أق١حٔح ئٌٝ جلأطظحٌ قطٝ ٠ٕطٟٙ جٌّى ٚجٌؿٌُ . ٚق١ىج 
.قطٝ ٔؼرٍ ًٚ٘ج ؾؼً ػّٟ غحػرح لأٔٗ ٌُ ٠ٍ٠ى أْ ٠ؼ١غ أٞ ٚلص ِٓ ٌقٍطٗ   

At night we stayed in farmhouses. The Icelanders were always pleased to see 

us. They gave us the best food and drink they had and refused our  

offers of money. We now travelled through  a strange country. We walked 

over beds of lava. The rocks were sharp and they hurt our feet. Volcanic rocks 

rose up above us. They were twisted into strange shapes. At the side of the 

path, steam shot up from hot springs below the Earth. No plants or flowers 

grew in this rocky land - there I was nothing but bare rock. 
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١ٌٍس فٟ ُِٕي ٠ٌفٟ ٚوحْ جلأ٠ٍٕٓى١٠ٓ ٠ٌٍِٚٓٓ ٌٍؤ٠طٕح ٚأػطٛٔح أفؼً جٌطؼحَ ٚجٌشٍجخ جًٌٞ ألّٕح جي

.جِطٍىٖٛ ٌٚفؼٛج ػٍػٕح ٌٍٕمٛو   

. ْحفٍٔح نلاي ذٍى غ٠ٍد ِٚش١ٕح ػٍٝ أْطف ِٓ جٌكُّ جٌرٍوح١ٔس ٚوحٔص جٌظهٌٛ قحوز فأطحذص ألىجِٕح 

ٌسَّ ٚػً ّّ شَهّ ُِ ٜ ؾحٔد جٌط٠ٍك ضظحػى جٌرهحٌ ِٓ ٠ٕحذ١غ ضكص جٌضفؼص جٌظهٌٛ جٌرٍوح١ٔس فٛلٕح ٚوحٔص 

ٌُٚ ٠ىٓ ٕ٘حن ش١ثح ْٜٛ جٌظهٌٛ  –فحٌٌُ٘ٛ ٚجٌٕرحضحش لا ضّٕٛ فٟ ًٖ٘ جلأٌع جٌظه٠ٍس . جلأٌع 

.جٌؼح٠ٌس   
 

 I began to feel tired, but my' uncle walked very quickly. He  never seemed to 

feel tired! As I walked, I thought about our journey to the centre of the Earth. 

'We are going to go down into the crater. Sneffels is a volcano. It has not 

erupted since 1229. My uncle thinks Sneffels is an extinct volcano. But 

perhaps it is not extinct - only sleeping. What will happen if it wakes up? 

What will happen to us then?' 

ٚذ١ّٕح وٕح ١ٍٓٔ فىٍش فٟ  !ذىأش أشؼٍ ذحٌطؼد ٌىٓ ػّٟ وحْ ٠ّشٟ ذٍٓػس ٌُٚ ٠رىٚ أٔٗ شؼٍ ذحٌطؼد 
ْ .ئٕٔح ُْٕٕي فٟ فٛ٘س "ٌقٍطٕح ئٌٝ ٍِوُ جلأٌع  ٚػّٟ ٠ؼطمى  1229ئٔٗ ٌُ ٠ٕفؿٍ ًِٕ ػحَ  .ْٕٚفٍُ ذٍوح

لا ٠ىْٛ نحِىج أْ ١ْٕفٍُ ذٍوحْ نحِى ٌىٕٗ ٌذّح  – ٔحتُ فمؾ   ِحيج ١ْكىظ ٌٛ جْط١مع ؟ ِحيج ١ْكىظ ٌٕح  .
 "ق١ٕثً ؟

After three more days we reached the base of Sneffels, That night I talked to 

my uncle about my fears. He told me that Sneffels would not erupt. He tried to 

prove this to me scientifically, but I could not understand him. I was still 

worried and full of fear. That night I had a terrible dream. I dreamed that 

I was inside a volcano. There was a great explosion and I was shot up out of 

the volcano like a rocket. 

ج ئٌٝ لحػىز ١ْٕفٍُ ٚفٟ ضٍه ج١ٌٍٍس قىغص ػّٟ ػٓ ِهحٚفٟ فأنرٍٟٔ أْ ١ْٕمٍُ ذؼى ٌٍِٚ غلاغس أ٠حَ ٚطٍٓ

فٟ ضٍه ج١ٌٍٍس  .ٌٓ ٠ٕفؿٍ ٚقحٚي أْ ٠ػرص ً٘ج ٌٟ ػ١ٍّح ٌىٕٕٟ ٌُ أفّٙٗ فىٕص لا أَجي لٍمح ١ٍِٚثح ذحٌهٛف 

ِػً قٍّص قٍّح ٍِػرح فكٍّص إٟٔٔ فٟ وجنً ذٍوحْ ، ٚوحْ ٕ٘حن جٔفؿحٌ ور١ٍ ٚأؽٍُمص نحٌؼ جٌرٍوحْ 

  .جٌظحٌٚل 
 
We climbed Sneffels for the whole of the next day. We climbed higher and 

higher. It was harder and harder to breathe because of the thin air. Even my 

uncle was tired. At eleven o'clock that night we reached the top of the 

mountain. We camped at the edge of the crater. We were more than one 

thousand five hundred metres above sea level.When we awoke the next 

morning, it was cold and clear. The whole of Iceland was spread out below us 

like a map. We could even see the coast of Greenland. 

ضٍٓمٕح ؾرً ١ْٕفٍُ ؽ١ٍس ج١ٌَٛ جٌطحٌٟ ، ٚضٍٓمٕح أػٍٝ فأػٍٝ ٚوحْ طؼرح ػ١ٍٕح جٌطٕفّ لأْ جٌٙٛجء ل١ًٍ قطٝ 

فٟ جٌٓحػس جٌكحو٠س ػشٍ فٟ ضٍه ج١ٌٍٍس ٚطٍٕح ئٌٝ لّس جٌؿرً ٚػٓىٍٔح ػٍٝ قحفس . أْ ػّٟ شؼٍ ذحٌطؼد 

جْط١مظٕح فٟ جٌظرحـ جٌطحٌٟ وحْ ػٕىِح . ِطٍ فٛق ْطف جٌركٍ  1500وٕح ػٍٝ جٌضفحع أوػٍ ِٓ . جٌفٛ٘س 

جٌؿٛ ذحٌوج ٚطحف١ح ، ٚوً أ٠ٍٕٓىج وحٔص ِٕطشٍز أْفٍٕح ِػً جٌه٠ٍطس قطٝ ئٕٔح جْططؼٕح أْ ٍٜٔ ْحقً 

. جلأٌع جٌهؼٍجء   
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My uncle did not have time to look at the view. We were at the top of Sneffels 

on one of its two peaks - but which one? My uncle asked Hans what the 

Icelanders called this peak.'Scartaris,' Hans replied.My uncle was delighted. 

'Let us enter the crater!' he exclaimed.The crater of Sneffels was shaped like 

an ice cream cone. The opening was more than a kilometre wide and it was 

about six hundred metres deep. We used ropes to help us to descend. By noon 

we were standing at the bottom of the crater. 

 
وٕح ػٍٝ لّس ؾرً ١ْٕفٍُ ػٍٝ ئقىٜ لّط١ٗ جلاغٕط١ٓ ٌٚىٓ . ٌُ ٠ىٓ ػٕى ػّٟ ٚلص ٠ٕظٍ ئٌٝ يٌه جٌّشٙى 

وحْ " . جْىحٌضحٌِ"ٞ أؽٍمٗ جلأ٠ٍٕٓى١٠ٓ ػٍٝ ًٖ٘ جٌمّس فٍو ٘حُٔ ْثً ػّٟ ٘حُٔ ػٓ جلاُْ جًٌ. أ٠ّٙح 
وحٔص فٛ٘س ١ْٕفٍُ ػٍٝ شىً ِهٍٚؽٟ ، فحٌفطكس وحٔص !" . ١٘ح ٔىنً فٟ جٌفطكس " ػّٟ ِرطٙؿح ٚلحي 

جْطهىِٕح قرحلا ٌطٓحػىٔح فٟ جٌُٕٚي ٚذؼى جٌظٍٙ . ِطٍ ػّمح  600أوػٍ ِٓ ٚجقى و١ٍٛ ِطٍ جضٓحػح ٚقٛجٌٟ 
.فٟ لحع جٌفٛ٘س  وٕح ٚجلف١ٓ  

At the bottom of the crater there were three chimneys. Each of these was 

about thirty metres wide. We started to explore them. Suddenly my uncle 

gave a shout. He called me over.'Look,' he said, pointing to a large rock with 

some marks on it. The marks were letters and they spelled the name of Arne 

Saknussemm.'You see?' he asked. 'Now do you believe me?'We had to 

discover which of the three chimneys Arne Saknussemm had descended. It 

was the chimney which the shadow of Scartaris touched at the end of June. 

But there was no shadow today because there was no sun. Today was June 

25th. If it stayed cloudy until the end of June, there would be no shadow to 

guide us. 

ذىأٔح ٔٓطىشفُٙ ٚفؿأز طحـ . ِطٍج جضٓحػح  30غس ِىجنٓ وً ِٕٙح قٛجٌٟ فٟ لحع جٌفٛ٘س وحٔص ضٛؾى غلا

ٚضٍه جٌؼلاِحش وحٔص . ِش١ٍج ئٌٝ طهٍز ور١ٍز ػ١ٍٙح ذؼغ جٌؼلاِحش " أٔظٍ " لحي ػّٟ . ػّٟ ٚٔحوجٟٔ

وٕح ِؼط٠ٍٓ " . أضٍٜ ً٘ج ؟ ً٘ ضظىلٕٟ ج٢ْ؟" ْإٌٟٔ ػّٟ " أٌٟٔ ْحو١ُْٕٛ " قٍٚفح ضش١ٍ ئٌٝ جُْ 

ئٔٙح وحٔص جٌّىنٕس جٌطٟ ٠ّطى ػ١ٍٙح ظً . أ٠ٓ ِٓ جٌػلاغس ِىجنٓ جٌطٟ ٠ٕرغٟ جْ ُٕٔي ف١ٙح  أْ ٔىطشف 

ْىحٌضٍِ فٟ ٔٙح٠س شٍٙ ١ٔٛ٠ٗ ٌىٓ ٌُ ٠ىٓ ٕ٘حن ظً ج١ٌَٛ لأٔٗ ٌُ ضىٓ ٕ٘حن شّّ ، ٚج١ٌَٛ وحْ جٌهحِّ 

.ٚجٌؼشٍْٚ ِٓ ١ٔٛ٠ٗ ٌٚٛ ظً جٌغ١َٛ قطٝ ٔٙح٠س ١ٔٛ٠ٗ فٍٓ ٠ىْٛ ٕ٘حن ظً ١ٌٍشىٔح  

 

Questions and answers 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 1. What did Axel and his uncle  prepare for the journey? 

ج جًٌٜ ؾُٖٙ أوًٓ ٚػّٗ ٌٍٍقٍس ؟َ  

 -They prepared guns, tools ,food and drink and scientific instruments . 

 ؾُٙٚ ج ذٕحوق ٚجوٚجش ٚؽؼحَ ٚشٍجخ ِٚؼىجش ػ١ٍّس

2- Where did Martha think they were going ? Why did she think so ? 

 أ٠ٓ جػطمىش ِحٌغح جُٔٙ يج٘ر١ٓ ٌّٚحيج

To the cellar because Axel  pointed down towards the center of the earth . 

 لأْ جوًٓ أشحٌ جٌٝ ٍِوُ جلأٌع .جٌٝ جٌّهُْ
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3. How did they travel to Iceland ?                                ؟ أ٠ٍٕٓىج٠ف ْحفٍٚج ئٌٝ ن  

- By steamer to Copenhagen then they sailed north to Iceland 

.ذحٌرحنٍز جٌٝ وٛذٕٙحؾٓ غُ أذكٍٚج شّحلا جٌٝ أ٠ٍٕٓىج   

5.  How did the Danish scientist help them ?               جٌىجٍّٔوٝ؟ٌؼحٌُ ج٠ف ْحػىُ٘ ن 

 - He gave them letters of introduction to the most important men in Iceland . 

.ؽحذحش ضٛط١س لأُ٘ جٌٕحِ فٝ أ٠ٍٕٓىج لأػطحُ٘     

4.  How did the Danish scientist help them ?               ٌؼحٌُ جٌىجٍّٔوٝ؟ج٠ف ْحػىُ٘ ن 

 - He gave them letters of introduction to the most important men in Iceland . 

.ؽحذحش ضٛط١س لأُ٘ جٌٕحِ فٝ أ٠ٍٕٓىج لأػطحُ٘     

5. How was Dr Fridrikson helpful to them ? ف٠ٍى٠ٌىْٓٛ ٔحفؼحً ٌُٙ ؟. ٠ف وحْ ون   

 - He arranged for a guide called Hans to take them to Sneffels. 

.ٌضد ٌُٙ ٍِشى ٠ىػٝ ٘حُٔ ١ٌأنًُ٘ ئٌٝ ْٕفٍُ   
 

 6. What did the professor tell Dr Fridrikson ? ف٠ٍى٠ٌه ْْٛ؟. جيج أنرٍ جٌرٍٚف١ٌٓٛ وَ   

 - He told him that he was interested in Iceland’s geology . 

.أنرٍٖ أٔٗ وحْ ِٙطّح ذؿ١ٌٛٛؾ١س أ٠ٍٕٓىج  

 7. How were the Icelanders kind to the three men? 

٠ف وحْ ْىحْ أ٠ٍٕٓىج وٍِحء ِغ جٌػلاغس ٌؾحي؟ن  

 - They gave them the best food and drink and refused to take any money. 

جقٓٓ جٌطؼحَ ٚجٌشٍجخ ٌٚفؼٛج جْ ٠أنًٚج جٜ ٔمٛو أػطُٛ٘  

 8. What terrible dream did Axel have ? 

ج ٘ٛ قٍُ أوًٓ ج١ٌٍ٘د؟َ  

 - He dreamt that he was shot up out of a volcano like a rocket . 

.جؽٍك ِٓ ذٍوحْ ِػً جٌظحٌٚل قٍُ ذأٔٗ   

9-Which peak did the three men climb ?How high was it ? 

  أٜ لّس ضٍٓمٙح جٌػلاغس ٌؾحي ِٚح جٌضفحػٙح

-The peak of Scartaries . It was more than (1500) metres above sea level. 

.ِطٍ جٌضفحػح 1500لّس ْىحٌضحٌِ ٚوحٔص جوػٍ ِٓ   

 10. How did they descend the crater?                         ٠ف ٌُٔٛج ِٓ جٌفٛ٘س ؟ن 

 - By using ropes .                                                            ذحْطهىجَ جٌكرحي.  
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11-Describe the countryside of Iceland? 

 طف ٠ٌف ج٠ٍٕٓىج

-It was cold, bleak without many plants or animals. 

 وحْ ذحٌوج وث١رح ذىْٚ وػ١ٍج ِٓ جٌٕرحضحش جٚ جٌك١ٛجٔحش

12. Who did they meet in Copenhagen ?                    َجًٌٜ لحذٍٖٛ فٝ وٛذٕٙحؾٓ ؟ ْ  

 - A Danish scientist . .                                                                ػحٌُ وجٍّٔوٝ    

13. Who did they meet in Iceland ?                               َجًٌٜ لحذٍٖٛ فٝ أ٠ٍٕٓىج ؟ ْ  

 - Dr Fridrikson . .                                                                      ف٠ٍى٠ٌىْٓٛ. و   

14. Did the professor tell anyone about the journey?Why? 

 ي أنرٍ جٌرٍٚف١ٌٓٛ أٜ أقى ػٓ جٌٍقٍس؟ٖ

- No, even Hans .To keep his journey secret. 

١ٌؿؼً ٌقٍطٗ ٍْج.لا قطٝ ٘حُٔ   

15. Why did the professor give a shout while he was exploring the three chimneys? 

 جٌػلاظ ِىجنٓ ؟ ِحيج أؽٍك جٌرٍٚف١ٌٓٛ ط١كس ذ١ّٕح وحْ ٠ٓطىشفي

- Because he saw the name of Arne Saknussemm written on  a large rock. 

.لأٔٗ ٌأٜ جُْ أٌٔٝ ْحن ُْٔٛ ِىطٛخ ػٍٝ طهٍز ور١ٍز   

16 – Did the three men know which chimney would lead to the center of the earth ?  

Why ?                                                                 ػٍف جٌػلاغس ٌؾحي أٜ فطكس ضمٛو جٌٝ ٍِوُ جلاٌع ؟ ً٘  

No, Because it was cloudy and there was no shadow to guide them . 

 لا لأٔٗ وحْ ٕ٘حن غ١َٛ ٌُٚ ٠ىٓ ٕ٘حن ظً ١ٌٍشىُ٘
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    My uncle was angry at the delay, but there was nothing he could do. For 

three days clouds covered the sun. At last, on June 28th, we awoke to bright 

sunshine. At noon the shadow of Scartaris fell on the middle of the three 

chimneys. 

'Forward!' cried my uncle. 'Now our journey begins!' 

We prepared to descend the chimney. Hans put the tools and scientific 

instruments into a bag then tied the bag to a rope. He threw the rope down 

the chimney. My uncle leaned over the chimney to watch our supplies fall. 

'Good,' he said. 'Our turn now.' 

ٌّٚىز غلاغس أ٠حَ غطص جٌٓكد جٌشّّ . وحْ ػّٟ غحػرح ذٓرد جٌطأن١ٍ ٌٚىٕٗ ٌُ ٠ىٓ ٕ٘حن ش١ة ٔفؼٍٗ 

ٚفٟ جٌٕٙح٠س فٟ جٌػحِٓ ٚجٌؼشٍْٚ ِٓ ١ٔٛ٠ٗ جْط١مظٕح ػٍٝ ػٛء جٌشّّ جٌٓحؽؼس ٚذؼى جٌظٍٙ جِطى ظً 

ضؿُٙٔح !" . ج٢ْ ضرىأ ٌقٍطٕح ! ٌلأِحَ"ز ِىجنٓ طحـ ػّٟ ْىحٌضحٌِ ػٍٝ جٌّىنٕس جٌْٛطٝ ِٓ جٌػلاظ

. ٌىٟ ُٕٔي جٌفطكس ٚٚػغ ٘حُٔ جلأوٚجش ٚجٌّؼىجش جٌؼ١ٍّس فٟ قم١رس غُ ٌذطٙح ذكرً ٚأٌمٝ جٌكرً فٟ جٌفطكس 

" .ؾ١ىج قحْ وٌٚٔح ج٢ْ " جٔكٕٝ ػّٟ ػٍٝ جٌفطكس ١ٌٍٜ ِإٕٔح ٟٚ٘ ضُٕي ٚلحي   
   We tied a long rope to the edge of the chimney and descended carefully. 

Hans went first, then my uncle, then me. The walls of the chimney were very 

rough. Sharp rocks stuck out at strange angles. We used these rocks to hold 

on to as we descended. We did not speak to each other. The only noise was 

the noise of loose rocks falling down into the black depths below us. 

وحٔص قٛجتؾ جٌّىنٕس . ُٔي ٘حُٔ أٚلا غُ ػّٟ غُ أٔح . ٌذطٕح قرلا ؽ٠ٛلا فٟ قحفس جٌّىنٕس ٌُٕٚٔح ذؼٕح٠س 
غٕحء ٌُٕٔٚح ، ٌُٚ نشٕس ؾىج ٚذٍَش جٌظهٌٛ جٌكحوز ذُٚج٠ح غ٠ٍرس فحْطهىِٕح ًٖ٘ جٌظهٌٛ ٌٕطشرع ذٙح أ

ٔطىٍُ ِغ ذؼؼٕح جٌرؼغ ٚجٌظٛش جٌٛق١ى وحْ طٛش جٌظهٌٛ جٌّطٓحلطس ئٌٝ جلأْفً فٟ يٌه جٌؼّك جٌّظٍُ 
 أْفٍٕح

    At the end of three hours I still could not see the bottom of the chimney, 

but I saw that it was getting narrower. There was hardly any light reaching 

us. It was getting darker and "darker. But still we went down. 

It was nearly midnight before we reached the bottom of the chimney. It had 

been a long and tiring descent and we were all exhausted. We had something 

to eat. I was ready to sleep, but my uncle was still excited. 

فٟ ٔٙح٠س جٌػلاغس ْحػحش وٕص لا أَجي لا أٌٜ لحع جٌّىنٕس ٌىٕٕٟ ٌأ٠ص أٔٙح وحٔص ضؼ١ك ٚوحْ ٕ٘حن ذحٌىحو 
جٔطظف ج١ًٌٍ ضم٠ٍرح ٌُٚ ٔظً ئٌٝ . ػٛءج ذ١ٓطح ٠ظً ئ١ٌٕح ، ٚوحٔص ضظٍُ أوػٍ ٚأوػٍ ٌىٕٕح لا ُٔجي ُٕٔي 

ضٕحٌٕٚح ش١ثح ِح ٚوٕص ؾحُ٘ج ٌٍَٕٛ ٌىٓ ػّٟ . ػرح ؽ٠ٛلا ٚوٕح ِٕٙى١ٓ وٍٕح لحع جٌّىنٕس فمى وحْ ُٔٚلا ِص
.وحْ لا ٠ُجي ِػحٌج   

 

 

Chapter four 
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'Axel, my boy, I have been examining the rocks as we descended. They prove 

that I was right. The centre of the Earth cannot be hot after all. All the 

scientists who think that the centre of the Earth is hot are wrong!' 

I was too tired to argue. 'We shall see, Uncle,' I said. Then I lay down and 

immediately fell asleep. 

Early next morning, a ray of sunlight woke us up. The red lava walls sparkled 

like jewels. 

'Well, Axel,' said my uncle, 'have you ever spent a more peaceful night in our 

little house in Hamburg?' 

ٌٚىٞ أوًٓ ، ئٕٟٔ وٕص أفكض جٌظهٌٛ ذ١ّٕح وٕح ُٕٔي ٟ٘ ضػرص إٟٔٔ وٕص ِكمح فٟ أْ ٍِوُ " لحي ػّٟ 

وٕص " . ؽٓ جلأٌع قحٌج ِهطث١ٓ فىً جٌؼٍّحء ج٠ًٌٓ جػطمىٚج أْ ذح. جلأٌع لا ٠ّىٓ أْ ٠ىْٛ قحٌج ذؼى ً٘ج 

.غُ ضّىوش ّٚٔص ذٍٓػس " ٍْٕٜ ٠ح ػّٟ " ِطؼرح ٌىٌؾس إٟٔٔ ٌُ أؾحوٌٗ ٚلٍص   
ؾ١ىج أوًٓ " لحي ػّٟ . فٟ جٌظرحـ جٌرحوٍ أ٠مظٕح شؼحػح ٌٍشّّ ٚضلألأش جٌكٛجتؾ جٌرٍوح١ٔس ِػً جٌؿٛجٍ٘ 

"ً٘ لؼ١ص ١ٌٍس أوػٍ ٍّْح ِٓ ًٖ٘ فٟ ٌُِٕٕح جٌظغ١ٍ فٟ ٘حِرٌٛؼ ؟  
We ate our breakfast then set off on the next stage of our journey. We 

entered a small passage that led off to the right. As we left the main chimney, 

I looked up and saw the sky of Iceland for the last time. 

When Sneffels had last erupted in 1229, the lava had flowed through this 

passage. Now it had frozen and formed strange shapes. It was like walking 

through a box of jewels. 

'It's magnificent!' I cried out. 

'So are you beginning to enjoy our journey, Axel?' my uncle asked. 'You will 

see even more beautiful things, my boy.' 

ضٕحٌٕٚح أفطحٌٔح غُ ذىأٔح جٌٍّقٍس جٌػح١ٔس فٟ ٌقٍطٕح ونٍٕح ٍِّج طغ١ٍج جًٌٞ لحؤح ئٌٝ ج١ّ١ٌٓ ٚذ١ّٕح وٕح ٔغحوٌ 

.جٌّىنٕس جٌػح١ٔس ٔظٍٔح ئٌٝ جلأػٍٝ ٌٚأ٠ص ّْحء أ٠ٍٕٓىج ٢نٍ ٍِز   

ً٘ج جٌٍّّ ٟٚ٘ ج٢ْ ِؿّىز  جٔٓحٌص جٌكُّ ِٓ نلاي 1229ػٕىِح جٔفؿٍ ١ْٕفٍُ آنٍ ٍِز فٟ ػحَ 

. ِٚطشٍىس ذأشىحي غ٠ٍرس ، ئٔٗ وحْ ٠شرٗ ج١ٌٍٓ فٟ طٕىٚق ِٓ جٌؿٛجٍ٘   
"ً٘ ذىأش ضٓطّطغ ذحٌٍقٍس ٠ح أوًٓ ؟ ْطٍٜ أش١حء أوػٍ ؾّحلا ٠ح ٌٚىٞ " ئٔٗ ٌجتغ فٓأي ػّٟ " فظكص   

We struggled onwards. My uncle had brought a strong electric torch and its 

light guided our way. When we stopped for the night, we were in a kind of 

cave. But there was plenty of air. In fact, I could feel a wind blowing through 

the cave. Where could it be coming from? 

I was too tired and hungry to worry about this question. In any case, there 

was something else that was worrying me. We had already used about half of 

our water. My uncle had expected to find underground springs of water, but 

so far we had not found any. I said this to my uncle. 'Are you surprised that 

there are no springs?' he asked. 

ػٕىِح ضٛلفٕح ذح١ًٌٍ . جؾطٙىج فٟ جٌطمىَ ٚوحْ لى أقؼٍ ػّٟ وشحفح وٍٙذ١ح ل٠ٛح ٚلحؤح ػٛءٖ فٟ جٌط٠ٍك 

وٕح فٟ ِح ٠شرٗ جٌىٙف ٌٚىٓ وحْ ذٗ ٚفٍز ِٓ جٌٙٛجء جْططؼص فٟ جٌكم١مس أْ أشؼٍ ذ٠ٍحـ ضٙد نلاي 

.ػٍٕٟ لا ألٍك ضؿحٖ ً٘ج جٌٓإجي جٌىٙف فّٓ أ٠ٓ ضأضٟ ؟ وٕص ضؼرحٔح ٚؾٛػحٔح ٌىٌؾس ضؽ  
وٕح ذحٌفؼً لى جْطهىِٕح قٛجٌٟ ٔظف ج١ٌّحٖ ٚوحْ ػّٟ لى ضٛلغ أْ ٔؿى ٠ٕحذ١غ ١ِحٖ ؾٛف١س ٌٚىٓ فٟ ضٍه 
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"ً٘ أٔص ِٕى٘ش أٔٗ ١ٌٓص ٕ٘حن ٠ٕحذ١غ؟" جٌّىز جٌط٠ٍٛس ٌُ ٔؿى أ٠ٙح فمٍص ً٘ج ٌؼّٟ فٓإٌٟٔ   
 

 

'Yes, I am ,'I replied. 'And I'm worried. We have only enough water for five 

days.'  

'When we get through these lava walls, there will be plenty of water,' my 

uncle said.  

   I didn’t agree  with my uncle, but I said nothing. We set off again the next 

morning. At noon we came to the end of the passage. Here it divided into two 

paths, one going east, the other west. Which path should we take? 

My uncle did not hesitate. He pointed to the eastern path and Hans and l 

followed him into it. As I walked, I thought about the lava pouring through 

this narrow passage hundreds of years ago. I hoped that it would not do that 

again while we were in it! 

ػٕىِح ٍّٔ نلاي ًٖ٘ " لحي ػّٟ " . ٔؼُ ٚأٔح لٍك فٕكٓ ٍّٔه ١ِحٖ ضىف١ٕح ٌهّٓس أ٠حَ فمؾ " ٌووش ػ١ٍٗ 

" .جٌكٛجتؾ ْٕؿى ٚفٍز ِٓ ج١ٌّحٖ   

جٔطٍمٕح غح١ٔس فٟ جٌظرحـ جٌطحٌٟ ٚفٟ جٌظ١ٍٙز ٚطٍٕح ئٌٝ ٔٙح٠س جٌٍّّ . ٌُ أضفك ِغ ػّٟ ٌىٕٟ ٌُ ألً ش١ثح 

ٕٚ٘ح جٔمُٓ ئٌٝ ٠ٍِّٓ أقىّ٘ح ٠طؿٗ شٍلح ٚج٢نٍ غٍذح فأ٠ّٙح ٠ٕرغٟ أْ ٍٔٓه ؟ ٌُ ٠طٍوو ػّٟ ٚأشحٌ ئٌٝ 

ذ١ّٕح وٕص أِشٟ فىٍش فٟ جٌكُّ ٟٚ٘ ضٕٓحي ِٓ نلاي ً٘ج . جٌٍّّ جٌشٍلٟ فطرؼٕح أٔح ٚ٘حُٔ ئٌٝ وجنٍٗ 

.ٍِّ جٌؼ١ك ِٓ ِثحش ج١ٌٕٓٓ ٚض١ّٕص أْ لا أفؼً يٌه غح١ٔس ذ١ّٕح وٕح ذىجنٍٗجي  
 

Questions and answers 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

2-How long did the three men wait at the bottom of the crater ? Why ? 

 وُ جٌّىز جٌطٝ جٔطظٍ٘ح جٌػلاغس ٌؾحي فٝ لحع جٌفٛ٘ٗ

- Three days Because the clouds hid the sun and there was no shadow to guide 

them to the right chimney . 

 غلاغس ج٠حَ لأْ جٌٓكد جنفص جٌشّّ ٌُٚ ٠ىٓ ٕ٘حن ظً ١ٌٍشىُ٘ ٌٍفطكس جٌظك١كس  -

1- When did the sun shine again? How was it helpful to the three men? 

 ِطٝ ْطؼص جٌشّّ غح١ٔس ٚو١ف وحٔص ِٓحػىز ٌٍػلاغس ٌؾحي 

   The sun shone again on the 28
th

 of June. The shadow of Scartaris showed them 

which chimney to go down                                                                                                                                                         

. ْ ِٓ ١ٔٛ٠س ٚذ١ٓ ٌُٙ ظً ْىحٌضحٌِ جٜ جٌفطكحش ٠ٌُْٕٛ ِٕٙح                    ْطؼص جٌشّّ غح١ٔس فٝ جٌػّٓ ٚجٌؼشٛ

    

 

3- What happened when the sun shone on the 28
th

 of June ? 

 ْطؼص جٌشّّ فٝ جٌػحِٓ ٚجٌؼشٍْٚ ِٓ ١ٔٛ٠س ؟ِحيج قىظ ػٕىِح 

- The shadow of scartaris fell on the middle chimney . 

 جِطى ظً ْىحٌضحٌِ ػٍٝ جٌفطكس جٌْٛطٝ
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4- Which chimney did the three men descend?                         أٜ فطكس ٌُٔٙح جٌػلاغس ٌؾحي 

    They descended the middle chimney.                                          ٌُٝٔٛج ِٓ جٌفطكس جٌْٛط 
 

5- How did they get their things down the chimney?  و١ف جٌُٔٛج أش١حءُ٘ جٌٝ جْفً جٌفطكس 

   with a rope. ًذكر 

 

5- How did the three men descend into the chimney?   و١ف ُٔي جٌػلاغس ٌؾحي فٝ جٌّىنٕس  

    They descended one by one using a long rope . 

 .ٚجقىج ذٛجقى ِٓطهى١ِٓ قرلا ؽ٠ٛلا 
 

6- What did they notice as they were descending?             ِحيج لاقظٛ ذ١ّٕح وحٔٛ ٠ٌُْٕٛ ؟ 

    They noticed that the chimney was getting narrower and darker. 

 لاقع ٚجْ جٌفطكس وحٔص ضؼ١ك ٚضظٍُ
 

7- What were the walls like ?                                                               و١ف وحٔص جٌكٛجتؾ 

The walls were rough and the rocks were sharp . جٌكٛجتؾ وحٔص نشٕس ٚجٌظهٌٛ وحٔص قحوز             

                    

8- What did the rocks of the chimney walls prove to professor Lidenbrock? 

 ِحيج جغرطص قٛجتؾ جٌّىنٕس جٌظه٠ٍس ٌلأْطحي ٌىْ ذٍٚن

   The rocks proved to him that the Centre of the Earth couldn't be hot as some 

scientists thought.                            أغرطص ٌٗ جْ ٍِوُ جلاٌع لا٠ّىٓ جْ ٠ىْٛ ٘حٌج وّح جػطمى ذؼغ جٌؼٍّحء 
 

9- What happened to the red lava walls when the sun shone ?                                                                                             

 ِحيج قىظ ٌٍكٛجتؾ جٌظه٠ٍس جٌكٍّجء ػٕىِح ْطؼص  جٌشّّ                                                                      

The walls sparkled  like jewels .                                                     ٍ٘ضلألأش ِػً جٌؿٛج 

10-Which passage did the men take first?                                          جٜ جٌٍّّجش ٍْىٛ٘ح جٚلا 

  They took the right passage first.                                                               ٍْٝىٛج جٌٍّّ جٌشٍل 
 

11- How was the passage ?                                                                          ٌٍّّو١ف وحْ ج 

There was plenty of air in it .                                                         وحْ ذٗ ٘ٛجء ٚجفٍ       
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   We followed this passage for three days. As we walked, I began to feel more 

and more tired. At first I could not understand this. But soon I realised why I 

was so tired. The path was going up, not down! Also, the rocks were different. 

We were, walking through younger rocks, where plants and animals were 

preserved in the rocks. I said this to my uncle, but he only nodded. I became 

angry. I picked up the shell of an insect preserved in the rock and showed it 

to my uncle. 

'Look at this!' I said. 

'Well,' he said calmly, 'it is the shell of an insect preserved in the rock.' 

that means ….' 

'Yes, that means that we may have taken the wrong path. I may have made a 

mistake. But we cannot be sure until we reach the end of this passage.' 

فٟ جٌرىج٠س ٌُ أفُٙ ً٘ج . ٚذ١ّٕح وٕح ّٔشٟ ذىأش جشؼٍ ذحٌطؼد أوػٍ فأوػٍ  ضرؼٕح يٌه جٌٍّّ ٌّىز غلاظ أ٠حَ 
وٕح ّٔشٟ . فحٌٍّّ وحْ ٠ٍضفغ لا ٠ٕهفغ ٚجٌظهٌٛ أ٠ؼح وحٔص ِهطٍفس. ٌىٕٟ ضكممص ذٍٓػس ْرد ضؼرٟ

نلاي طهٌٛ أطغٍ ػٍّج ٚوحٔص جٌٕرحضحش ٚجٌك١ٛجٔحش ِكشٌٛز فٟ جٌظهٌٛ، ٚلٍص ً٘ج ٌؼّٟ ٌىٕٗ ُ٘ 
جٔظٍ ئٌٝ "غحػح فحٌطمص طىفس ٌكشٍز وحٔص ِكشٌٛز فٟ جٌظهٌٛ ٚذ١ٕطٙح ٌؼّٟ ٚلٍص أطركص . ٌأْٗ

ٔؼُ يٌه ٠ؼٕٟ إٔٔح ......." "قٕٓح ئٔٙح طىفس ٌكشٍز ِكشٌٛز فٟ جٌظهٌٛ يٌه ٠ؼٕٟ"فمحي ذٙىٚء " ًٖ٘
" ٌذّح جضهًٔح ٍِّج نحؽثح، ٌذّح أوْٛ أنطأش ٌىٕٕح لا ٠ّىٓ أْ ٔطأوى قطٝ ٔظً ئٌٝ ٔٙح٠س ً٘ج جٌٍّّ  

So we continued to follow the eastern passage. We passed through walls of 

12- Why was Axel worried? What did his uncle tell him? 

 ٌّحيج وحْ جوًٓ لٍمح ِٚحيج جنرٍٖ ػّٗ
  Because they had already used up about half of the water they had brought. 

. His uncle told him that they would find underground water.  

 لأُٔٙ جْطٍٙىٛج قٛجٌٟ ٔظف ج١ٌّحٖ جٌطٝ جقؼٍٚ٘ح 
 

12- What did Axel hope not  to happen?                                       ِحيج ضّٕٝ جوًٓ جلا ٠كىظ 

   He hoped that the lava wouldn't pour again through the narrow passage  

 ضّٕٝ ألا ضٕٓحي جٌكُّ جٌرٍوح١ٔس ٍِز غح١ٔس ِٓ نلاي جٌٍّّ جٌؼ١ك
 

Chapter five 
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coal. I saw whole trees preserved in the rock walls. But after two more days 

we came to a blank wall ahead of us.There was no way past it. We had to go 

back to the crossroads and take the western passage. 

    Three days later we reached the crossroads. I was tired and very thirsty. I 

had finished the water in my bottle. I fell to the ground.My uncle lifted me up 

and put his water bottle to my lips.'Poor boy,' he said. 'Drink this. It is the last 

of the water. Ihave saved it for you.''Thank you, Uncle,' I said and drank the 

last few drops of water. I immediately felt stronger.'Now, Uncle,' I whispered, 

'we must go back.''Back?' my uncle asked. 'And give up our journey? Never!' 

'Then we must die,' I replied. 

ضحذؼٕح ج١ٌٍٓ فٟ جٌٍّّ جٌشٍلٟ ٍِّٚٔح نلاي قٛجتؾ ِٓ جٌفكُ ٌٚأ٠ص أشؿحٌج ذأوٍّٙح ِكشٌٛز فٟ جٌكٛجتؾ 
ٔحن ؽ٠ٍك نلاٌٗ ٌُ ٠ىٓ ٖ. جٌظه٠ٍس ٌىٕٗ ذؼى ٌٍِٚ أوػٍ ِٓ ١ِٛ٠ٓ ٚطٍٕح ئٌٝ قحتطح ِٓىٚوج أِحِٕح

ذؼى ٌٍِٚ غلاغس أ٠حَ ٚطٍٕح ئٌٝ ِفطٍق . فحػطٌٍٔح أْ ٔؼٛو ئٌٝ ِفطٍق جٌطٍق ٚٔأنً جٌط٠ٍك جٌغٍذٟ
ٌفؼٕٟ . جٌطٍق ٚوٕص ِطؼرح ٚػطشحٔح فأٔح جْطٍٙىص ج١ٌّحٖ جٌطٟ وحٔص فٟ جٌُؾحؾس، فٓمطص ػٍٝ جلأٌع

" ج ئٔٙح آنٍ ١ِحٖ ٚفٍضٙح ٌهٌٚىٞ جٌط١د جشٍخ ً٘"ػّٟ ٌلأػٍٝ ٚٚػغ َؾحؾس ١ِحٖ ػٍٝ شفطحٞ ٚلحي 
ج٢ْ ٠ح ػّٟ ٠ؿد "ّ٘ٓص . ٚشٍذص آنٍ لطٍجش ج١ٌّحٖ جٌم١ٍٍس فشؼٍش ذٍٓػس إٟٔٔ ألٜٛ" شىٍج"لٍص 

"ئيج أو١ى إٔٔح ّْٕٛش"فٍووش  " ٔؼٛو؟ ٚٔطهٍٝ ػٓ ٌقٍطٕح؟ أذىج"فٓأي " أْ ٔؼٛو  

I knew I would never persuade my uncle alone. I turned to Hans. He shook 

his head and pointed to my uncle. 

'Master,' he said 'Axel,' my uncle said, 'give me one more day to find water. If 

we do not find water in the western passage tomorrow, we will go back 

together.' 

'Well,' I replied, 'so be it. .Do as you wish.' 

And we set off into the western passage. The passage led 

down through older rocks. We walked all day. I could hardly go on because of 

my dreadful thirst. And then I heard a noise. 

It was the noise of running water. Somewhere on the other side of the wall of 

rock there was an underground river. 

٘ٛ "وٕص أػٍف إٟٔٔ ٌٓ أْطط١غ أْ ألٕغ ػّٟ ٌٛقىٞ فحٌطفص ئٌٝ ٘حُٔ فُٙ ٌأْٗ ٚأشحٌ ئٌٝ ػّٟ ٚلحي 
أػطٕٟ ٠ِٛح ٚجقىج ٌىٟ أؾى ج١ٌّحٖ ٚئيج ٌُ ٔؿى ج١ٌّحٖ فٟ جٌٍّّ جٌغٍذٟ غىج فٓٛف "لحي ػّٟ ". ج١ٌٓى

جٔطٍمٕح فٟ ٌقٍطٕح فٟ جٌٍّّ جٌغٍذٟ ٚلحؤح جٌٍّّ ". ض٠ٍى قٕٓح ف١ٍىٓ يٌه، جفؼً ِح"ٌووش ". ٔؼٛو ٠ْٛح
ِش١ٕح ؽ١ٍس ج١ٌَٛ ٚجْططؼص ذحٌىحو أْ أْطٍّ ذٓرد ػطشٟ ج١ٌّّص غُ . ئٌٝ جلأْفً نلاي طهٌٛ ألىَ

ئٔٗ وحْ طٛش ١ِحٖ ؾح٠ٌس فٟ ِىحْ ِح ػٍٝ جٌؿحٔد ج٢نٍ ِٓ جٌكحتؾ جٌظهٍٞ وحْ ٠ٛؾى . ّْؼص ػٛػحء
. ٍٔٙ ؾٛفٟ   

We put our ears to the rock. Hans moved along the wall, listening carefully to 

the water. Where the noise of the running water was loudest, he lifted his 

pickaxe and hit the rock. He worked calmly to make a hole. The rock wall was 

thick but after an hour of hard work, Hans had made a large hole in the wall. 

My uncle was impatient. He did not want to wait. He offered to help Hans. But 

before he could pick up the axe, there was a hissing sound. A strong jet of 

water burst out of the wall of rock. 

It was so strong that it almost knocked Hans down.  
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ٚػؼٕح آيجٕٔح ػٍٝ جٌظهٌٛ ٚضكٍن ٘حُٔ ػٍٝ جِطىجو جٌكحتؾ ٠ٓطّغ ذكٍص ئٌٝ ج١ٌّحٖ ٚق١ع وحْ طٛش 
وحْ جٌكحتؾ جٌظهٍٞ . ػًّ ذٙىٚء ١ٌظٕغ غمرح. ج١ٌّحٖ جٌؿح٠ٌس أػٍٝ، ٌفغ ٘حُٔ فأْٗ ٚذىأ ٠هرؾ جٌظهٌٛ

وحْ ػّٟ ِطؼؿلا ٌُٚ ٠ٍ٠ى . َ غمرح ور١ٍج فٟ جٌكحتؾ١ّْىح ٌىٕٗ ذؼى ٌٍِٚ ْحػس ِٓ جٌؼًّ جٌؿحو طٕغ ٘حْ
. جلأطظحٌ فؼٍع ػٍٝ ٘حُٔ أْ ٠ٓحػىٖ ٌٚىٓ لرً أْ ٠طّىٓ ِٓ جٌطمحؽ جٌفأِ وحْ ٕ٘حن طٛش ػحٌٟ

جٔفؿٍش و١ّس ِٓ ج١ٌّحٖ نحٌؾس ِٓ جٌكحتؾ جٌظهٍٞ ٚوحٔص ل٠ٛس ٌىٌؾس أٔٙح ضم٠ٍرح أٚلؼص ٘حُٔ ػٍٝ 
 جلأٌع

He cried out in pain when the water hit him. I put my hand into the water and 

soon understood why. The water was very hot - almost boiling!'The water is 

boiling!' I exclaimed.'Well, in the open air it will soon cool down,' said my 

uncle.The water quickly cooled down. We did not wait until it was cold before 

we drank it. It tasted better than any water I had ever tasted before. We 

drank until we were not thirsty any more. 

، ٚطٍل ِٓ جلأٌُ ػٕىِح طىِطٗ ج١ٌّحٖ فٛػؼص ٠ىٞ فٟ ج١ٌّحٖ ٚذٍٓػس فّٙص جٌٓرد، وحٔص ج١ٌّحٖ ْحنٕس 
ذٍوش " قٕٓح فٟ ً٘ج جٌٙٛجء جٌطٍك ْطرٍو ذٍٓػس"فمحي ػّٟ " ئْ ج١ٌّحٖ ضغٍٟ" فمٍص! ضم٠ٍرح ضغٍٟ -ؾىج

ج١ٌّحٖ ذٍٓػس ٌُٚ ٕٔطظٍ قطٝ ضرٍو ضّحِح فشٍذٕح وحْ ؽؼّٙح أفؼً ِٓ أٞ ١ِحٖ يلطٙح ِٓ لرً، شٍذٕح قطٝ 
.ٌُ ٔشؼٍ ذأٞ ػطش  

   Before we left this place, we filled our bottles. We decided to leave the hole 

in the wall as it was. The underground river would now run beside us as we 

descended. It would show us the quickest way down. 

I felt much better. I was eager to continue our journey. I had no thoughts 

now of going back. 

ٌمى لٌٍٔح أْ ٔطٍن يٌه جٌػمد فٟ جٌكحتؾ وّح ٘ٛ فحٌٍٕٙ جٌؿٛفٟ . يٌه جٌّىحْ ِلأٔح َؾحؾحضٕح لرً أْ ٔغحوٌ
شؼٍش ذطكٓٓ ٚوٕص ِطكّٓح . ١ْؿٍٞ ذؿٛجٌٔح ج٢ْ أغٕحء ٌُٕٔٚح ْٚٛف ٠ر١ٓ ٌٕح أٍْع ؽ٠ٍك فٟ جٌُٕٚي

.ٌلاْطٍّجٌ فٟ جٌٍقٍس ٌُٚ ٠ىٓ ػٕىٞ أٞ أفىحٌ ج٢ْ ضطؼٍك ذحٌؼٛوز  
 

The path continued westward. Now we started to go down again. The rocks 

were shaped like steps and we descended quickly. Each day my uncle used his 

scientific instruments to calculate our position. One day he told me that we 

were now two hundred kilometres west of our starting point.'That means we 

are under the sea!' I exclaimed.'You are right, my boy,' my uncle said with a 

smile. 'We are under the Atlantic Ocean! ' 

جْطهىَ ػّٟ . وحٔص جٌظهٌٛ ػٍٝ شىً وٌؾحش جٌٍُٓ فٌُٕٕح ذٍٓػس. لحؤح جٌٍّّ ٌٍغٍخ ٚذىأٔح ُٕٔي غح١ٔس
وُ فٟ جٌغٍخ ِٓ ٔمطس ذىج٠طٕح فمٍص 200ٚفٟ ٠َٛ أنرٍٟٔ إٔٔح وٕح ػٍٝ ذؼى ِؼىجضٗ ج١ٌِٟٛ ١ٌكُٓ ِٛلؼٕح 

".أٔص ِكك ٠ح ٌٚىٞ، ٔكٓ ضكص جٌّك١ؾ جلأؽٍٕطٟ"لحي ػّٟ ِرطّٓح " يٌه ٠ؼٕٟ إٔٔح ضكص جٌركٍ"  
We travelled more quickly now. My legs were used to walking and I was not 

so easily tired. Sometimes I felt a pain in my ears, but I knew that this was 

due to the increased air pressure.'Breathe quickly,' my uncle said. 'That will 

relieve the pressure.' I tried this and found that my uncle was right - as usual. 

By August 7th we were one hundred and twenty-five kilometres below the 

Earth's surface and about eight hundred and forty-fiveKilometers from 

Iceland.  

شؼٍش أق١حٔح ذأٌُ فٟ أئٟ ٌىٕٟ . ْحفٍٔح ج٢ْ ذٍٓػس ٚضؼٛوش ٌؾلاٞ ػٍٝ جٌّشٟ ٌُٚ أضؼد ذٌٓٙٛس
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ؾٍذص ". ضٕفّ ذٍٓػس يٌه ٠ٍ١ْكه ِٓ جٌؼغؾ"لحي ػّٟ . ػٍفص أْ يٌه وحْ ذٓرد ػغؾ جٌٙٛجء جٌُجتى
وُ ضكص  125وحٌّؼطحو، ٚذكٍٛي جٌٓحذغ ِٓ أغٓطّ وٕح ػٍٝ ذؼى  –ً٘ج فحوطشفص أْ ػّٟ وحْ ِكمح 

وُ ِٓ أ٠ٍٕٓىج  845ْطف جلأٌع ٚقٛجٌٟ      
That day the passage descended quite gently. I was in front of Hans and the 

Professor. The torch I carried lit our way. We walked in silence, as usual. 

Suddenly I turned around to speak to my uncle, but he was not there. Neither 

was Hans. I was alone.'I have been walking too fast,' I said to myself. 'I'll 

wait for them to catch up with me.' But after a quarter of an hour there was 

no sign of them. I called out, but there was no answer.'Well, there is no need 

to worry,' I thought. 'I will go back and meet them. I only need to follow the 

water.' 

 
. وٕص أقًّ وشحفح ٠ؼٟء ٌٕح جٌط٠ٍك.  ن ج١ٌَٛ ٌُٕٔح ذٌٓٙٛس ئٌٝ قى ِح، وٕص أِحَ ٘حُٔ ٚجلأْطحيفٟ يي

ِش١ٕح فٟ طّص وحٌّؼطحو ٚفؿأز جٌطفص قٌٟٛ ٌىٟ أوٍُ ػّٟ ٌىٕٗ ٌُ ٠ىٓ ِٛؾٛوج ٚلا قطٝ ٘حُٔ فمى وٕص 
ع ْحػس ٌُ ٠ىٓ ٌىٓ ذؼى ٌٍِٚ ٌخ." ئٕٟٔ ٍْش ذٍٓػس ؾىج، ْأٔطظٍُ٘ ١ٌٍكمٛج ذٟ"لٍص ٌٕفٟٓ . ٚق١ىج

قٕٓح لا وجػٟ ٌٍمٍك، ْأػٛو ٚألحذٍُٙ، فأٔح فمؾ "فىٍش . ٕ٘حن أٞ ئشحٌز ٌُٙ فٕحو٠ص ٌٚىٓ ٌُ ٠ىٓ ٕ٘حن ٌو
."أقطحؼ ضطرغ ج١ٌّحٖ  

I bent down to put my hands in the water. But my hands touched dry rock! I 

was lost. I would die of hunger and thirst. 

'Oh, Uncle!' I cried out in despair. 

I decided to go back up the path. Somewhere I had taken a wrong turning. If 

I went back, I would find the true path. I walked Upwards for half an hour. 

Then I walked straight into a wall of rock and fell down I had reached dead 

end. There was no way forward I had dropped my torch when I fell down and 

now it was broken. I lay in complete darkness. 

I stood up and ran back down the path, waving my arms and shouting like a 

madman. I ran against the rocks and cut myself. At last I fell on the floor and 

fainted. 

 
. ٌمى ضٙص ْٚأِٛش ِٓ جٌؿٛع ٚجٌؼطش! جٔك١ٕص لأػغ ٠ىجٞ فٟ ج١ٌّحٖ ٌىٓ ٠ىجٞ ٌّٓص طهٍج ؾحفح

لٌٍش أْ أٌؾغ فٟ يٌه جٌٍّّ ففٟ ِىحْ ِح جضهًش ِٕكٕٝ نحؽثح ٌٚٛ " ٠ح ئٌٟٙ ػّحٖ"طٍنص فٟ ٠أِ 

َ ِش١ص فٟ جضؿحٖ قحتؾ ِٓ جٌظهٌٛ ٌؾؼص ْأؾى جٌط٠ٍك جٌظك١ف ٍْش ٌلأػٍٝ ٌّىز ٔظف ْحػس ظ

ٌُ ٠ىٓ ٕ٘حن ؽ٠ٍك ٌلأِحَ فأٚلؼص وشحفٟ ٚػٕىِح ٚلؼص . ْٚمطص ػٍٝ جلأٌع فمى ٚطٍص ئٌٝ ٔٙح٠س ١ِطس

. ٔٙؼص ٚؾ٠ٍص ػحتىج ئٌٝ أْفً جٌٍّّ ٍِٛقح ذًٌجػٟ ٚطحٌنح ِػً جٌّؿْٕٛ. جٔىٍٓ فٍلىش فٟ ظلاَ ضحَ

.       ش ػٍٝ جلأٌع ِغّٝ ػٍٟؾ٠ٍص ذحضؿحٖ جٌظهٌٛ ٚؾٍقص ٔفٟٓ ٚفٟ جٌٕٙح٠س ْمؾ  
 

Questions and answers 
 
 

 

1- Which path did the professor take first?                                           ِحيج ٍْه جلاْطحي جٚلا 

    He took the eastern path.                                                                          ٍْٝه جٌٍّّ جٌشٍل 
 
2- Why did Axel feel more and more tired while they were walking in the eastern  path  ? 

 ٌّحيج شؼٍ جوًٓ ذحٌطؼد جوػٍ ٚجوػٍ جغٕحء ١ٍُْ٘ فٝ جٌٍّّ جٌشٍلٝ

- Because the path was going up .                                                                لأْ جٌٍّّ وحْ ٠طؿٗ ٌلأػٍٝ
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4- Why did Axel think that they had taken the wrong path? 

 ٌّحيج ئضمى جوًٓ جُٔٙ  جضهًٚج جٌٍّّ جٌهطأ؟

because it was going up not down and they were walking through younger rocks where 

plants and animals were preserved. 

 لأْ جٌٍّّ وحْ ٠طؿٗ ٌلأػٍٝ ١ٌّٚ ٌلأْفً ُٚ٘ وحٔٛ ٠ّشْٛ نلاي طهٌٛ جطغٍ ِكشٌٛ ف١ٙح ٔرحضحش ٚق١ٛجٔحش
 
5-What was preserved in the younger rocks ?                                 ٌِٛحيج وحْ ِكشٌٛج فٝ جٌظه 

-Plants,animals and shells preserved in the rocks . ٔرحضحش ٚق١ٛجٔحش ٚجطىجف                              

           
6- What did the men find at the end of the eastern passage? 

 ٔٙح٠س جٌٍّّ جٌشٍلٝ ِحيج ٚؾى جٌٍؾحي فٝ

    They found a blank wall. قحتطح ِٓىٚوج 
 

7- Why did the men have to go back to the crossroads and take the western passage?  

 ٌّحيج جػطٍ جٌٍؾحي ٌٍؼٛوز جٌٝ ِفطٍق جٌطٍق ٚجضهحي جٌٍّّ جٌغٍذٝ

     Because they found a blank wall at the end of the eastern passage 

 .لأُٔٙ ٚؾىٚج قحتؾ ْى فٝ ٔٙح٠س جٌٍّّ جٌشٍلٝ

 
 8- What happened to Axel at the crossroads? 

 جيج قىظ لأوًٓ فٝ ِفطٍق جٌطٍق؟َ

  - He fell to the ground because he was so thirsty.  ً  ٚلغ ػٍٝ جلأٌع لأٔٗ وحْ ػطشحٔح

 
 9. Why did Axel try to persuade his uncle to stop the journey and go back? 

 ؟ ِحيج قحٚي أوًٓ أْ ٠مٕغ ػّٗ ذأٙحء جٌٍقٍس ٚجٌؼٛوزي 

- Because there was no water. 
 لأٗ ٌُ ٠ىٓ ٠ٛؾى ِحء

 
10- How was the western passage different from the eastern passage? 

 جٌٍّّ جٌغٍذٝ ِهطٍفح ػٓ جٌشٍلٝ ؟و١ف وحْ 

    The rocks of the western passage were older. The eastern passage was going up, but 

the western passage was going down. 

 ٚجٌٍّّ جٌشٍلٝ وحْ ٠ٍضفغ ٌىٓ جٌٍّّ جٌغٍذٝ وحْ ٠ٙرؾ ذُٙ. طهٌٛ جٌٍّّ جٌغٍذٝ وحٔص جلىَ 
 
11- What did they hear in the western passage?                   ِٝحيج ّْؼٛج  ٚفٝ جٌٍّّ جٌغٍذ 

    They heard the noise of running water on the other side of the rock wall 
 ّْؼٛج طٛش ١ِحٖ ؾح٠ٌس ػٍٝ جٌؿحٔد ج٢نٍ ِٓ جٌكحتؾ

 

13-Why did Hans cry out in pain  when the jet of water hit him . 

 ٌّحيج طٍل ٘حُٔ ِٓ ِطأٌّح ػٕىِح طىِطٗ ج١ٌّحٖ

Because the water was almost boiling .                                          ٍٝلأْ ج١ٌّحٖ وحٔص ضم٠ٍرح ضغ 

12. What did they hear in the western passage? ج جًٌٜ ّْؼٖٛ فٝ جٌٍّّ جٌغٍذٝ؟َ   

- They heard the noise of a running water. .ّْؼٛج ػٛػحء ١ِحٖ ؾح٠ٌس   
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Revision 

14-How did the water of the underground river taste ? جٌٍٕٙ جٌؿٛفٝ               و١ف وحْ ؽؼُ ١ِحٖ  

-it tasted very good                                                                                             وحٔص ؾ١ىز ؾىج 

15- Where did the western path take the three men? How did they know? 

 جٌٝ ج٠ٓ جنً جٌٍّّ جٌغٍذٝ جٌػلاغس ٌؾحي

    The western path took them down under the Atlantic Ocean. The professor 

calculated their position by using his scientific instruments. 

 ٚجلأْطحي قٓد جٌّٓحفس ذحْطهىجَ ِؼىجضٗ جٌؼ١ٍّس. أنًُ٘ جٌٍّّ جٌغٍذٟ ئٌٝ أْفً جٌّك١ؾ جلاؽٍٕطٝ 

 
 16. What was the effect of the increased air pressure on Axel? What did his uncle 

advise him?                                                          ِح ٘ٛ ضأغ١ٍ ٠َحوز جٌؼغؾ ػٍٝ جوًٓ؟ِحيج ٔظكٗ ػّٗ 

-He felt a pain in his ears.                                                                      ٗشؼٍ ذأٌُ فٟ جي١ٔ.  

-His uncle advised him to breathe quickly.                                ٔظكٗ أْ ٠طٕفّ ذٍٓػس جلاْطحي
 

17- How did Axel get lost? Did he find the other two men immediately? 

ذٍٓػس و١ف ضحٖ جوًٓ ًٚ٘ ٚؾى جٌٍؾ١ٍٓ جلان٠ٍٓ  

     Axel was walking in front of his uncle and Hans. When he turned to talk to his 

uncle, he didn't find him or Hans. He waited for a quarter of an hour then called out 

but there was no answer. 

جػس غُ ٔحوٜ َِ ٠ؿى ػّٗ جٚ ٘حُٔ ، فحٔطظٍ ٌّىز ٌذغ وحْ جوًٓ ٠ّشٝ جِحَ ػّٗ ٚ٘حُٔ ٚػٕىِح جٌطفص ١ٌىٍُ ػّٗ  ي

 ٌٚىٓ ذلا ٌو

18- What did Axel do when he got lost? جيج فؼً أوًٓ ػٕىِح فمى؟َ   

He was running like a madman and his head hit a sharp rock and fainted. 

أغّٝ ػ١ٍٗٚجططىَ ٌجْٗ ذظهٍز قحوز وحْ ِحش١حً ِػً ٌؾً ِؿْٕٛ   

19- What happened to Axel at last?                                                  ماذا حدث لأكسل فً الىهاية؟ 

      At last he fell on the floor and fainted.                                   وقع علً الارض   مغمً عليه 
 

20- Axel fell in great despair when……………….                                  شؼٍ جوًٓ ذح١ٌحِ ػّٕح  

- ………………………………. He thought that he would die of hunger and thirst 

ئػطمى جٔٗ ١ّْٛش ِٓ جٌؿٛع ٚجٌؼطش   
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Answer 
 

1- Who was Axel? 

2- What do you know about professor Lidenbrock? 

3- Why couldn’t the professor understand the message in the parchment? 

4- When did Axel come to live with his uncle? 

5- What did the professor find in the old book? 

6- What was Lidenbrocks’ job? 

7- Who could break the secret code? How? 

8- Why did Axel decide not to tell his uncle about the secret message? 

9- Why did Axel tell his uncle about the secret message at last? 

10- Why was Axel going to burn the parchment? Why didn’t he burn it? 

11- How was Dr Fridrikson helpful to the professor and Axel? 

12- What was Hans?  

13- What did the crater of Sneffels shape like? 

14- How did the Danish scientist help them? 

15- Why was Axel afraid of the journey? 

16- What did Hans do to take their supplies down with them?  

17- How long did the clouds cover the sun? 

18- How did they descend down the chimney? 

19- How could the three men find their way in the darkness? 

20- How was Hans helpful to the professor and Axel? 

21- What was the professor doing while they were descending the craters?  

22- Why was Axel excited about the frozen lava? 

23- When did Axel begin to enjoy the journey? 

24- Which chimney did the three men have to discover to reach the centre of the earth? 

25- What was the professor’s decision about the problem of water? 

26- How did Axel know that they had taken the wrong path? 

27- Why did Axel want his uncle to give up the journey? 

28- What happened to Axel after he had separated from Hans and the professor? 

29- What did Hans do to get water? 

30- How did the water of the underground river taste? 

31- Why did they decide to leave the hole in the wall behind them? 

32- Every day the professor used his scientific instruments. Why? 

33- What did the professor advise Axel to do when he felt pain in his ears? 

34- Why did the professor ask Axel to breathe quickly? 

35- Why did Axel faint when he got lost?  

36- Why did Axel feel pain in his ears?  

37- What was the problem which made Axel think of going back? 

38- Why did they go back to the crossroads? 

39- What did Hans use to make a hole in the wall? 

40- When did Hans cry out in pain? 
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41- Why did Hans cry out in pain when the jet of water hit him? 

42- What did Hans do when the water hit him? 

Complete 
43- When Axel’s parents died, he --------------------. 

44- When --------------------, he came to live with his uncle professor Lidenbrock. 

45- Professor Lidenbrock was so famous that --------------------. 

45- The professor gave lectures at --------------------.    

46- Sneffels was --------------------. 

47- Sneffels had several craters, but only one --------------------. 

48- Axel could break the secret code by chance when --------------------. 

49- They prepared for the journey --------------------, -------------------- and --------------------. 

50- They travelled to Copenhagen (Iceland) by --------------------.  

51- They found -------------------- chimneys on top of Sneffels. 

52- The crater of Sneffels shaped like --------------------.  

53- Axel and the professor didn’t know where to go in Iceland, so --------------------. 

54- The three men, Hans, Axel and the professor descended the chimney by ----------------. 

55- They found their way in the darkness by --------------------. 

56- The clouds covered the sun for --------------------. 

57- The walls of the rocks proved that --------------------. 

58- While they were descending the chimney, the professor was --------------------. 

59- Axel felt pain in his ears because of --------------------. 

60- Hans made a hole in the wall to --------------------. 

61- In the Western Passage the plants and animals were --------------------.  

62- They became sure that they took the wrong path when --------------------. 

63- It was difficult to walk through the passage because --------------------. 

64- Finding a shell of an insect preserved in the rocks means --------------------.  

 

 

 

 

 

 


